





The following memorial to the Honorable the
Court of Directors and t# the Governor-General
of India, together with extracts (so far as relates
to my case) from the report of the Commissioners
of.enquiry into the state of the Calcutta Police in
1849, which led to my removal from the appoint-
ment of Deputy Superintendent of Police, after a
period of 31 years in that Department, and 40
years in the Service of the IHonorable East India
Company, is printed, to enable my friends more
readily to judge of the injustice which 1 have
suffered and the grounds of my Appeal to the
Honorable Court for redress..

J. J. McCann.
Calcutta, August, 1850,






TO THE HONORABLE

THE COURT OF DIRECTORS

OF THE

Company of M evchants, Trading to the Gast fnbics.

T T r gty

The humble Memorial of James Joseph
McCann, late Officiating Superin-
tendent of the Calcutta Police,

RESPECTFULLY SHEWETH,

That your memorialist having been dis-
missed from his said late office after the investi-
gations into the affairs of the Calcutta Police if
the year 1849, with the details and results of
which vour Honorable Court must be well ac-
quainted, and feeling deeply aggrieved thereby pre-
sented a Memorial thereon to the Most Noble the
Marquis Dalhousie, Governor-General of India,
whilst in Calcutta, in the month of March, 1850,
a copy whereof is annexed hereto in the Appendix
marked with the letter A., to which your memo-
‘rialist earnestly and respectfully entreats the atten-
tion of your Honorable Court.f =

2nd. That your memorialist has so amply set
forth the length and nattire of his Services in your
Honorable Employ, and his acquisition of the ap-
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probation of all those under whom he was placed
during a long course of Service, together with the
testimonials in his favor of many Gentlemen of the
hichest distinction in India during that period, and
your memorialist has so fully stated and argued
upon the circumstances of his Case, so far as the
information then in his possession enabled him
to do soup to the date of presenting his memorial,
that it would be a waste of the time of your
Honorable Court to do more than refer to such
memorial on such parts of his Case with an humble
but earnest prayer, that your Honorable Court
will with patience peruse it and give that welght
and consideration to its contents which its 1mport-
ance to the happiness, and future comfort of an
old andhitherto respected Servant would call for,
from those whom he does not hesitate to say, he
Lias for 40 years zealously and industriously served
with integrity and with honor.
3d. That on the first day of April, 1850, the
emorial was returned to your memorialist with
the following endorsement on it by Mr. Courtenay
the private Secretary to the most noble the Gover-
nor-General. |
 The proceedings of the Government of Bengal
as recards Mr. McCann have had the full appro-
“bation of the Governor-General ; and his lordship
declines to rezopen the Case.”
By order,
F. S. CouURTENAY,



Ath. That your memorialist believes, and has
strong reason for such belief, that the most noble
the Governor-General did not read, if he opened,
the memorial. He probably considered that as
he did not intend to interfere with the Acts of
the Government of Bengal, it would be a super-
fluous waste of the shorf time he had to devote
to business whilst in Calcutta, to read and consi-
der it, and his mind was probably made up accord-
ing to the impressions of the Committee, without
examination of, whether there was evidence to
iustify your memorialist’s dismissal and consequent
deprivation of a Pension (to which 40 years of
laborious Service had entitled him) on the very
eve of 1ts enjoyment: but your memorialist
respectfully submits thatethe humblest ipdividual
in your honorable Service, has a claim for at least

a hearing and consideration of his Case by the

head of the local Government of India (when
competent to entertain it) before being compelled
to resort fo vour Honorable Court for the redress
which he secks.  Your memorialist, however, ap-
peals with increased confidence to your Honorable
Court in not having to contend against the seem-
ing weight, whi¢ll might be attached to a decision
heving been passed on his claims by the Governor-
(= cral of India, after a patient consideration of
the circumstances of his Case. * e

5th. About the middles of April, 1850, your
memorialist received #from the Secretary to the

‘Government of Bengal, a letter bearing date thg
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11 of April, 1850, together with the papers therein
referred to, which said letter of the Secretary of
the Government of Bengal to your memorialist
purported to be in reply to his letter of the 13th
October, 1849, in the 11th paragraph of his said
memorial to the Governor-General of India hereto
annexed referred to and was as follows :

No. 601.
From the Secretary to the Government of Bengal,
To Mr. J. J. McCAanN, |
Dated Fort William, 11th April, 1850
Sir,— Your application of the 13th of October
last, repeated on the 11th of February, to be
supplied with a copy of such parts as relate to
yourself of the Report of the Commissioners who
were appointed to enquire into the state of the
Calcutta Police, having been laid before the De-
puty Governor of Bengal, His Honor is pleased
to authorize your being supplied with the accom-
panying Extraets from that Report, and from a

letter this day addressed to the Chief Magistrate

by His Honor’s Comman

I have {Trhonor to be,
S1r,
Your most obedient servant,
(Signed) J. P. GrRANT
Segretary to the Government o:f Bengal.

6th. That the Extracts from the letter addressed
to the Chief Magistrate ofeCalcutta by Command
af the Honorable the Deputy Governor of Bengal



9

in the letter of the Secretary of the Bengal
Government of the 11th April, 1850, lastly set
forth (being paras.7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 of
such letter to the Chief Magistrate) purporting
to state the grounds on which your memoriahst
was removed from his appointment, are set forth
in the body of this his memorial, for more easy,
and as being of frequent reference ; but the extracts
from the report of the Police Commissioners be-
ing voluminous and of less frequent reference
(though essential In maintenance of the state-
ments in the letter from His Honor the said Go-
vernor of Bengal, or for reference thereto to shew
that such statements are founded 1n error and are
not supported by evidence, but are mere supposi-
tions and assumptions without proof) are set forth
in the Appendix hereto annexed marked with the
letter b with which your memorialist feels
constrained, though reluctantly, to encumber his
memorial although he was wellawarethat the whole
of the papers relating to the Police Enquiries, must
have been transmitted to your Honorable Court,
and are now amongst the records of the East India
‘House in London. Ile 1s not entitled to rely on,
or refer to anything, but what has been furnish-
ed to him as the grounds whereon such decision
of His Honor the Deputy Governor of Bengal
rested, nor would your memorialist have the
means of referring to anything else.

7th. The papers referred to, in and by the letter
of the Secretary of the Government of Bengal, as
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containing the extracts from the letter of His
Honor the Deputy Governor of Bengal to the
Chief Magistrate of Calcutta, were and are as
follows—the several paragraphs being headed as
herein set forth, that is to say,

“Extract from a letter from the Secretary to
the Government of Bengal to the Chief Magis-
trate of Calcutta, dated the 11th of Aprl, 1850.

Par. 7. The Deputy Governor thought it ne-
cessary to remove Mr. McCann the Deputy su-
perintendent of Police on being informed of .his
resuming charge after expiry of his leave on sick
certificate.

Par. 8. Tn the case of the sale of the Puttel-
dangah Thannah to Mutty Loll Seal, effected by
Mr. McCann without authority, or at least with-
out authority regularly obtained, the fact was not
reported by Mr. McCann for about three years,
during all which time he pretended that the
money had been lying by him forgotten. 'I'he
Committee report on very sufficient grounds that
they are quite unable to credit Mr. McCann’s ac-
count of the affair; that his conduct and state-
ment shew an important dereliction of duty and
a subsequent discreditable attempt to mislead Govern-
ment, and that every part of the transaction is dis-
creditable to him,

Par. 9. ‘Irlefting two other Thannahs to Mut-
ty Loll Seal for which the rent was never de-
manded, the Committee think that there may be
reason to presume that Mr. McCann acted with-
out superior authority/
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Par. 10.. “The Committee report that it has been
established to their satisfaction that Mr. McCann
allowed open gambling to prevail unchecked un-
der the lead of one Gouffoor Khansamah in the
Dhurrumtollah Bazaar, a property in which Mut-
ty Loll Seal has a principal interest, and it seems
unpossible to question the correctness of the con-
clusion they have arrived at,

Par. 11. The Committee again report it to be
their opinion that Mr. McCann must be held to
have been unduly influenced by Mutty Loll Seal
In what i5 called the Champatollah case : they con-
sider that the removal of Inspector Lancaster
from one Section to another in connection with
that case, for which removal there was no good
reason, had every appearance of having had for
its object the saving of Mutty Loll Seal’s credit
with his neighbourhood. It is indeed difficult td
account for the Inspector’s removal on .any other
hypothesis.

Par. 12. "The Committee report again against
Mr. McCann in connection with the forgery case.
In that case one Sibchunder Mullick against
‘whom a warrant had been issued at the instance
of the Bank of Bengal, by the late Mr. Robison
i February, 1846, appeared at the Police Office
and received In a very irregular manner a dis-
charge from Major Birch in January, 1849. He
was permitted to live for six months subsequent-
ly in Calcutta without concealment and without
the warrant being put in force against him, al-
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though it was in full force never having been
cancelled or recalled. The Committee sum up
their opinion of Mr. McCann’s conduct in this
case in the following terms. ¢ But that he (Mr.
McCann) long connived at Sibchunder Mullick’s
escape from the Law for the due enforcement
of which he was specially responsible we can-
not see any valid reason to doubt. The most
favorable supposition for Mr. McCann is, that
having become aware of the irregular proceedings
in Major Birch’s Office respecting Sibchunder
Mullick’s discharge, he did not in his subordi-
nate capacity choose to expose them by active in-
terference on his part, unless forced to do so by
circumstances. Even' this supposition however
would require us to record our opinion of a very
gross breach of duty on Mr. McCann’s party
Par. 13. One of the most serious and sys-
tematic mal-practices that have been reported,
namely, the misappropriation of property coming
into the custody of the Police, is brought home to
Mr. McCann who had uncontrolled charge of all
such property. The Committee report ¢ Mr. Mc-
Cann conducted all fransactions connected with .
the receipt of property coming into his official
custody in a manner, which 1f it was not mtended
must have had the certain effect of affording the
oreatest facilities for fraud. He kept no lists of
articles or money received, took no account of
articles in store at any period, and gave no receipt
for articles brought to him. The key of the chest
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in which valuables were kept remained exclusive-
ly with Mr. McCann. Mr. Law when he took
charge of the Office of superintendent found no
accounts in it of any kind whatever;’ that there -
was misappropriation, His Honor observes 1s cer-
tamn.”
True Extract,
(Signed) J. W. DALRYMPLE,
Under Secy. to the Govt. of Bengal.

sth. It will not fail to be observed by your
Henorable Court that the Honorable the Gover-
nor of Bengal in paragraph 7th, states to the ef-
fect that he found it necessary to remove your
memorialist from his Office on being informed
that he had resumed charge on the expiry of his
leave on sick certificate Your memorzalist re-
spectfully submits that this 1s not the fact al-
though it probably arises from mere careless
drafting by the Secretary to the Bengal Govern-
ment, 1t 15 calculated to raise an erroneous and
disadvantageous impression as to your memorial-
ist, namely, that his leave on sick certificate had
expired when your memorialist returned to Cal-
~cufta, and that on his resuming Office on such
expiration of his sick-leaye from necessity he was
at once removed from his situation, and that the
contents df the report formed the justification for
converting the removal into dismissal.

9th. Your memorialist returned to Calcutta on
the 29th of August, 1849, before his sick-leave
which was for 3 months had -expired; at a time
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when he was still in a very infirm state of mind
and body, and he returned from no other motive
whatever than an anxious desire to meet as soon
as he was In any thing approaching a state which
could authorize his return, the statements or rather
Insinuations which malice and envy were appa-
rently dictating to the prejudice of your memori-
alist, and with the determination (and a conscious
feeling of his perfect rectitude of conduct) to pre-
sent himself at the earliest possible moment to the
Commissioners of the Police Enquiry for examina-
tion on any subject either with reference to him-
self or the Police in general whereon they might
wish for enquiry or explanation.

10th. That your memorialist was not in the
first instance 1mmediately on his return to Calcut-
ta (or on again resuming charge of his Office which
he did on the 13th September) removed, and upon
the report coming in, dismissed, is easily establish-
ed by a mere reference to the letter of the Secre-
tary of Government to the Chief Magistrate of
Calcutta, of the 6th October, and the letter of the
Chief Magistrate to the Superintendent of Police
of the 18th October, 1849, in the 10th paragraph
of your memorlalist’s appeal to the Governor-Gen-
eral hereto annexed, Appendix A. set forth. That
the report of the Commissioners alone and the
erroneous impressions and conclusions which they
had imbibed and surmised alone caused your
memorialist’s dismissal, there cannot be a shadow
of doubt ; and although your memorialist, when
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his memorial was prepared, and had no clue to
unravel the mystery of a report, which could war-
rant a dismissal of your memorialist on a charge
of having been guilty of ¢ extreme official malver-
sation,” yet from what had passed before the
Commissioners, your memorialist could but have
a general idea of what appeared most to influence
them, and the result has shewn that your memo-
rialist was not greatly erroneous in the opinion he
formed, for although the extracts from the letter
of .his Honor the Deputy Governor of Bengal to
the Chief Magistrate of the 11th April, 1850, les-
sens the causes of the dismissal to five only, yet the
observations of the Commissioners on the other
points of the case forbid your memorialist’s re-
moval or alteration of any part of his memorial
as presented to the most noble the Governor-Gen-
eral, and he therefore has thought it best ¢o
forward it to your Honorable Court unaltered and
entire as originally framed and presented.

11th. The several points whereon the Deputy
Governor 1s represented as grounding the dismis-
sal of your memorialist are now reduced to the
- five following, namely,

First.  The sale of the Putteldangah Thannah,
and 1t would even seem that it is intended by His
Honor the Deputy Governor to add or at least to
consolidate with it (the sale of the Putteldan-
gah Thannah,) the letting to Mutty Loll Seal of
two other Thannahs.* These form the subjects
alluded to in paragraphs 8 and 9 of the letter to

£ Y * M w7 *
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Second. Allowing gambling unchecked in the
Dhurrumtellah Bazaar again to faver Mutty Loll
Seal.

Third.  Being unduly influenced by Mutty Loll
Seal m the Champatollah case, paragraph 11th.

Fourth. What 1s termed the Forgery case re-
lating to Sibchunder Mullick forming the subject
of paragraph 12th.

Fifth. That which, as your memornialist re-
spectfully submits to, and of which he trusts to
satisfy your Honorable Court, 1s most erroneoys-
ly termed a serious and systematic practice of the
misappropriation of property coming into the pos-
session of the Police, described as ‘‘brought home’
to your memorialist. This forms the subject of
the 13th or last paragraph of the letter to the
Chief Magistrate.

-12th. It will be necessary although your me-
morialist intends to rely chiefly on the arguments
of his former memorial to add comments on and
an examination of each of these charges in this
his memorial ; before doing so, however, your me-
morialist takes leave to continue his narrative of
the events which have led him to apply to your
Honorable Court for justice and redress.

-13th.  Your memorialist after perusal of the
papers of the 11th April, 1850, was still as much
m the dark as to the views and intention of
Government on the subject of his Pension (which
had been one of the points whereon he solicited in-
formatien for his guidance from His Lordship the
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Governor-General, but relative to which the en-
dorsement herein before set forth by order of the
Governor-General was entirely silent,) and your
memorialist being still wholly at a loss to under-
stand whether 1t was Iintended by the Govern-
ment that his dismissal was to operate as a forfei-
ture of his pension (whereto by 40 years service he
was entitled at the time of his dismissal) on the 9th
of May, 1850, addressed a letter to the Honorable
the Deputy Governor of Bengal enquiring whether
such was the intention and understanding of Go-
vernment, whereto your memorialist on or about
the 19th of May received the following letter from
Mr. Dalrymple then the Under Secretary of the
Government of Bengal.
No. 888. .
From the Under Secy. to the Govi. of Bengal,

To Mr. J. J. McCann, .
Dated Fort William, 13th May, 1850.
Sir,—In reply to your letter of the 9th instant
enquiring whether your dismissal from the Office
of Deputy Superintendent of the Calcutta Police
lately held by you, disentitles you to the pensionary
support of Government, I am directed by the De-
puty Governor of Bengal to inform you that a dis-

missed Officer has no claim to a pension.

* I have the honor to be,
Sir, .
Your most obedient servant,
(Signed) * J. W. DALRYMPLE,

Under Secy. to the Govt. of Bengal.
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14th. If your memorialist had suecceeded in
obtaining his pension, to which he cannot but
strongly feel that his long services clearly entitle
him, it was his intention, in his present state of”
health and at his time of life, not to have trou-
bled your Honorable Court with any memorial,
but to have taken his pension and to have ad-
dressed a letter to the members thereof (which
he would have published and circulated amongst
the many honorable and distinguished persons
from whom he has had the honor to receive high
and much valued testimonials of character and
conduct, and whose good opinion as well as that
of your Honorable Court your memorialist is most
anxious to preserve) exculpatory of his character
from all those charges  against him, which your
memorialist 1s bold to say are, though believed by
the Commissioners of Police Office enquiry, en-
tirely without any real foundation, and wholly
unsupported by any evidence. Your memorialist
conceives that they rest merely on the prejudices
and surmises or presumptions of the Commis-
stoners, and in some instances on the misconcep-
tion of His Honor the Deputy Governor of Ben-
gal, or of the person who drafted the letter to the
Chief Magistrate, of the real nature and contents
of the reportitself. The rejection, however, upon
mere belief feunded on surmises, suspicions and
presumptions, of his claim to a pension after his
lengthened services durihg which he defies the
whole world, and his bitterest enemies to nrove
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one mstance of wilful misconduct on his part to-
wards those whom hehad the honor to serve,leaves
him no alternative, but to cast himself at the feet
of your Honorable Court, and to implore that pa-
tient hearing and consideration of his case, and .
If necessary the opportunity of meeting definite
charges of misconduct which he has in vain sought
for at the hands of the local Government, and fi-
nally that justice to which he has no doubt such
an opportuuity will enable him to prove that he
1s fully entitled. No officer or soldier in your
Honorable service has ever yet been cashiered or
dismissed upon the report of a Committee of en-

quiry, however strong the suspicions, however
rife the surmises, however potent the belief of
those who composed it. » They may all found
grounds for specific charges for the decision of a
competent court to decide upon, when proved ir
evidence, but no case can be adduced wherein an
accused person has been dismissed and deprived
of a, hard-earned pension after 40 years’ service
who was ready and willing to stand the ordeal of
a higher and duly constituted Court. Your me-
monalist is so willing—He pleads not guilty to
every loose charge, to every charge contained in
the letter to the Chief Magistrate assigning the
reason foris dismissal.

15th.  Your memorialist to avoid all chance
of misconception of his feelings and motives is
anx1ous to repeat a statement in his memorial to
the Governor-General. He does not for One mo-
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ment dispute the absolute right of your Honor-
able Court (nor of your Government in India
subject to the approbation of the home author-
ities) to dismiss any of its servants on mere sus-
picion or surmise, but he does dispute the moral
right to dismiss, without proof, any member of
its service, if punishment is to accompany that
dismissal. And what punishment he would ask
can be more severe, or less justifiable, if the of-
fence merely rests upon suspicion, than to deprive
a servant after 40 years of laborious servityde,
during which not one act of wrong can be proved,
of the provision for sickness and old age to which
the rules of the service would entitle him.

16th. Your memorialist proceeds to examine
the grounds on which the supposed charges against
him rest.
- Furst. The sale of the Putteldangah Thannah.

This circumstance forms the subject of the 24th
paragraph of your memorialist’s appeal to the Go-
vernor-General annexed hereto marked A, to
which your memorialist begs to refer your Hon-
orable Court. He has little to add to what is
there contained upon that subject, but what little
he has to add 1s not unimportant, and he has some-
what to explain as to the last statement in that
paragraph. Further reflection upon the circum-
stance of that case since his memorial to the Go-
vernor-General was prepared, has brought to his
recollection, the fact in smpport of his argument
therein, that he would not have presumed to sell,

PN, o rn




21

and nobody would have bought from him without
authority, any property belonging to Government.
Your memorialist never did sell the Putteldangah
Thannah. It was agreed by Mr. Patton himself
with Muity Loll Seal to be sold, to the latter ; and
after 1t was so agreed to be sold, Mr. Patton came
down with Mutty Loll Seal to the room of your
memorialist on the ground floor, and in coming
down your memoralist met them on the stairs and
returned with them to his room: when they all met
on the stairs, a Baboo wholly unknown to your me-
morialist but whom he now believes was Deno-
nauth Sein, who was on his way to Mr. Patton, to
whom the Baboo delivered a note which Mr. Pat-
ton read and then said to the Baboo you are too
late ““1t 1s sold to Mutty Loll Seal,” apnd then
proceeded to your memorialist’s room and there
informed him that the Putteldangah Thannah
was sold to Mutty Loll Seal for 1350 Rupees,
and desired your memorialist on Mutty Loll Seal
paying the price to put him into possession
thereof. Your memorialist therefore must explain,
that so far as to having seen a Baboo, whom he
- now believes to be Denonauth Sein, on that occa-
sion, the latter part of the 24th paragraph of your
‘memorialist’s former memorial must be considered
as modified, but your memorialist reiterates that
““ of the bid of Denonauth Sein and all relating or
subsequent to or consequent on it,”” save as to his

having come to the Police, and your memorlahst
¥» & & -
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occasion, your memorialist was in thorough igno-
rance, and that the whole transaction related to an
office with which he had no official connection,
and that your memorialist only received the price
thereof under the express direction of the Chief
Magistrate for safe custody, which as he has
already stated was put on its receipt into the iron
chest kept by your memoralist for property
coming into possession of the Police; and the
whole amount of such payment, however the
notes may have been changed m the manner in his
former memorial, paragraph 24th explained, (your
memorialist does not know that they were nor
what were the notes originally paid in) remained
in the iron chest and at no time in the personal
possession of your memorialist. The Commis-
sioners say they are “ unable to give credit to
your memorialist’s report of his proceedings”and
that they “ are unable to say with certainty what
the truth is about the notes, but do not believe
that they were paid mto the Police chest, and
kept for about 3 years as professed by him,” and
they therefore regard his conduct and statement
as ‘ shewine an important dereliction of duty
and a subsequent discreditable attempt to mislead
the Government.”” What dereliction of duty and
what subsequent discreditable or othes attempt
to mislead the Government the Commissioners
do not state or explain, and your memorialist
solemnly declares that he eannot imagine what 1t
is that the Commissioners intend to charge him
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with as a “dereliction of duty” or ¢ attempt to
mislead the Government.”” Because the Commis-
sioners cannot believe your memorialist’s report
of his proceedings, it does not necessarily follow
that his statement is incorrect, and your memo-
rialist most solemnly reasserts what is stated in
paragraph 24th, of his said memorial to the
Governor-General, ‘¢ that the amount of the money
paid for the Putteldangah Thannah remained in
the iron chest from the moment when your
memorlalist received 1it, that whether the same
or other notes the precise sum there remained up
to, and until the time of your memorialist being
about to leave Calcutta in gmune, 1849, when he
paid it over into Mr. Patton’s office in the original
envelope in which the money had been paid with
the original endorsement on 1t, nor was any part
thereof otherwise than in the iron chest in deposit
at any time in your memorialist’s posgession, and
that he never directly or indirectly received or
expected from any human being, benefit or advan-
tage from the sale of the Putteldangah Thannah
or from the purchase money paid for it. This
appears to have been considered by the Commis-
sioners at least, 1If not more than, the full amount
of its fair value-—it indisputably was a full value.
This appears to your memorialist to be the only
fair question for consideration ““did your memo-
rialist benefit or expect to benefit by the sale of
the Putteldangah Tha‘mah or by the possession
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Again your memorialist defies proof “ of hs
having the slightest interest or feeling therein or
the slightest benefit or expectation of benefit from
the sale, which was not his sale but that of the
Chief Magistrate, and one which not a Surveyor
in Calcutta would have said was otherwise than
what he should have been desirous to ensure for
the Government—nor indicative of favor or affec-
tion in any one towards Mutty Loll Seal. Be
that as it may, it was no sale of your memorialist,
nor one in which he had any interest or feeling
for himself or any other person. And your
memorialist solemnly protests against receiving
any measure of punishment upon any suspicions
of the Commissioners or their inability to credit
your memorialist’s explanation.

17th. Your memorialist can hardly conceive
that the reason assigned in the 9th paragraph of
the letter togthe Chief Magistrate that “ the com-
mittee think that there may be reason to presume that
Mr. McCann acted without superior authority in
letting two other Thannahs to Mutty Loll Seal,”
can have weighed with His Honor the Deputy
Governor in removing your memorialist. This
forms no subject upon which he considered it
necessary to comment In his memorial to the
Governor-General. He never conceivell it possi-
ble that blame could have been attached to him
respecting this. He is still at a loss to understand
whether it forms a substantive charge relied on
in the letter to the Chief Magistrate. ‘That the
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two old Thannahs in question (Kubberdangah
and Burra Bazar) were occupied under an ar-
rangement verbally sanctioned by Mr. Patton
with Mutty Loll Seal (that he should rent the
Thannahs keeping them in repair and pay 10
Rupees a month as rent to Government, which was
the full agreement though not exactly stated by the
Commissioners) is stated to have rested, before
the Commissioners, on the assertion of the said
Mutty Loll Seal and of your memorialist against
(if 1t can he said to be opposed to such assertion)
the statement of Mr. Patton, or rather his non-
recollection of it. Of Mr. Patton’s memory (the :
Commissioners observe) “ On points of official
detail 1t has been seen by us in the course of our
enquiries to be by no means ready or certain.”
With this comment upon the goodness of his
memory, all the opposition to the positive asser-
tion of Mutty Loll Seal and your memorialist,
(upon which m this most unimportant, very
trumpery case, they are to be convicted of false-
hood without any adequate motive)is Mr. Patton’s
statement that ‘ he has not the slightest recollec-
tion of his even having been spoken to on the
subject.” The fact is that on the Thannahs
ceasing to be occupied by the Police, and on
becoming Vacant, they were soon used for all sorts
of purposes, and became a nuisance to their neigh-
bourhood. It was with this view alone, that
Mutty Loll Seal wanted*to rent them until sold, to
get rid of the nuisance, for although Mutty Loll
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Seal did not himself live 1n the immediate neigh-
bourhood, many of his friends and relatives did,
for whomyour memorialist imagines he was in fact
acting. This was an equal object with the Po-
lice. That Mr. Patton with a memory ‘“ on official
details by no means ready or certain’’ should not
recollect his assent to a matter to which no one
ever attached much importance is not extraordi-
nary, but that he did give his ready assent to Mut-
ty Loll Seal’s proposition 1s a fact to which your
memorialist 1s ready to make Qath, and to prove
by the deposition of Mutty Loll Seal; and that
the Chief Magistrate considered it at the time, as
your memorialist certainly did, an advantageous
offer for the Police. Your memorialist did not
then and does not now doubt, nor can he conceive
that the Commissioners ever intended to place
Mr. Patton’s non-recollection of a fact as a proof
of its not having occurred against the positive
Statement of two persons that it did actually take
place. Your memorialist begs to mention that
the Thannahs are still let and he believes at the
same rtenf, but to other parties. That no bills
should be presented for the monthly rent of those .
Thannahs by the Police, whilst Mutty Loll Seal
had each succeeding month a much heavier claim
upon the Police for the rent of the stables occupi-
ed by the Police, your memorialist cannot think
wanted any other justification than the statement
of that fact, and the admmssion of its correctness
so far as related to the existence of the counter-
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claiam. Mr. Patton’s requiring satisfactory Re-
port as to the organization of the mounted Police
before he asked the (overnment to sanction the
payment of rent for their stables was nothing to
the owner of the stables; the rent of which was
equally due, whether the mounted Police were in
a state of satisfactory or unsatisfactory organiza-
tion, had not Mutty Loll Seal and the Chief Ma-
gistrate been on very friendly terms the former
probably would not have acquiesced in such a
mode of answer to his claim ; but had a Bill for
10 Rupees Rent of the Thannahs, been presented
when the presenter or his employers owed one
for 100 Rupees for Rent of Stables, it is not pro-
bable that very ready payment would have been
accorded. The Commissioners say ‘‘ the leave to
use the Thannahs may or may not have been an
act of undue favour to Mutty Loll Seal.” An
act of undue favour by whom ? If it were done
with the sanction of the Chief Magistrate, it was
an undue favour (if undue favour it was to allow
a man of opulence to prevent two old Thannahs
from being made a nuisance to the neighbourhood
and to pay a rent for them of 10 Rupees per
month to Government) by the Chief Magistrate
and not by your memoriwalist. Mutty Loll Seal and
your mombdrialist assert that the Chief Magistrate
did give his sanction, as it was most.reasonable he
should do, to such a benefit to the neighbourhood.

Mr. Patton says he * does not recollect it.”” The
fact 1€ 1t was to no favor to Muttv T.all Qagl
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but rather to the Police. It was an accommoda-
tion (as your memorialist has shewn) to the neigh-
bourhood and consequently to the public. The

Commissioners conclude the 20th paragraph of
their report as follows :

““ At the least the circumstances connected with
the suspension of claim for their (the Thannahs)
rent, give evidence of much want of order in the
business of the Police Office though we would
not attach the blame due on that account to Mr.
McCann further than as from what we have first
stated, there may be reason to presume that he acted
without proper reference to superior authority in the
matter.” Your memorialist confidently submits to
your Honorable Court, that he is in no way what-
ever accountable, nor can any blame by possibility
attach to him, for any want of order in the busi-
pess of the Police ; save and except it were found
that he had in any way departed from the rules
prescribed for the transaction of it, in his own
department by his Superior and Guide the Chief
magistrate, whom he was bound to obey. Your
memorialist had no regulating or administrative
power in any department of the Police, but merely
to control and govern the Executive Police, under
the directions of the Chief or other Magistrates.
But the fair inference which your niemorialist
would draw from the last sentence of the 20th
paragraph of the Commissioners’ Report, and the
general nature of the rest-of the paragraph is, not
as the 9th paragraph of the letter, to the Chief
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Magistrate states,  that in letting two other Than-
nahs to Mutty Loll Seal the Committee think there
may be reason to presume that Mr. McCann acted
without proper reference to superior authority,” but
rather, from the words of the Commissioners,
““ there may be reason to presume that he acted
without proper reference to superior authority
i the matter,” that the Commissioners thought
there may be reason to presume that your memo-
riahst had not referred to superior authority for
orders not to send in the Rent Bills for the
Stables ; which they comment on your memorial-
1st’s explanation, and the tmprobability of Mr.
Patton’s forgetting such a special reason 21ven
for holding over the demand for them. This of
course cannot be more than conjecture and beljef
on the part of the Commissioners. Your memo-
rialist, however, is bound to admit that what the
Commisstoners “ think there may be reason to pre-
sume In the matter,” is most vague and obscure.
The person who drafted the letter to the Chief
Magistrate has put into the mouth of His Honor
the Deputy Governor of Bengal an mterpretation
~as his which your memorialist respectfully insists
cannot be the correct Interpretation ; and if the
whole of that paragraph will not (as your memo-
rialist submitg) support that interpretation, what-
ever weight if any may have been attached to that
portion of the charges against your memorialist
must fall to the ground as formed on an Erroneous
view of the report of the Commissioners. Your
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memorialist cannot but believe that His Honor
the Deputy Governor when he allowed any
consideration or weight to the circumstances at-
tending the letting of these two Thannahs as
prejudicial to your memorialist, must have been
under the impression, created probably by the
report, that your memorialist ought to have
made out the Bills and collected the rents of the
Thannahs, 10 Rupees a month, and that the per-
formance of a duty which his consideration for
Mutty Loll Seal made him abstain from, ought to
have performed. Your memorialist begs to inform
your Honorable Court that Ae had nothing what-
ever to do with the making out or omitting to
make out the bills. The matter lay altogether
in Mr. Patton’s department ; if blame attaches to
any one, 1t 1s to him and not to your memorialist.
If the bills had been made out for it, they would
have been made out under the direction of Mr.
Patton by the Accountant, they would mever have
been brought into your memorialist’s office, they
would have been drawn by the Accountant and
signed by Mr. Patton and collected by a Sircar
in the Accountant’s department, and all this with-
out your memorialist’s being aware, except he
had learnt by accident that the transaction had
taken place. It i1s somewhat gallingeto find a
matter reported 1n a way which imputes miscon-
duct which if 1mputable at all to any one, (which
your memorlalist 1s far from thinking it 1s) is cast
upon one inno degree answerable for it. It speaks
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however volumes as to the unjust prejudice to
your memorilalist, with which this report is drawn
up.

18th. Your memorialist cannot however quit
this charge without appealing to your Honorable
Court for your deliberate decision whether any
act or acts upon which an old and hitherto com-
mended servant of the Honorable Company is to
be deprived of the reward of 40 years service
ought 1n any degree to rest on no better founda-
tion than a finding so uncertain, so vague, and
s0 wholly undefined, as that  there may be reason
to presume that he acted without proper reference
to superior authority wn the matter 2’ How, when,
in what respect, or particular, “in the matter,”
or what ‘‘superior authority,” was not referred
to, which ought to have been so referred to is no
where shewn. Whatever “ may be presumed” is
only hesitatingly, hypothetically put. Your me-
morialist trusts to be forgiven by your Honorable
Court if he adds the five different senses or mean-
ing whrich Dr. Johnson in his smaller edition of /
hlS Dictionary gives to the verb  presume.”

1st. To suppose; to believe previously without
examination.

2d. To suppose ; to affirm without immediate
proof.

3d. To venture without positive leave.

4th. To form confident or arrogant opinions.

5th. To make confident or arrogant attempts.

Your memorialist knows not in which of these
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senses the word is intended to be used by the
Commissioners in their report; but he ventures
to say that it will be about the first mstance
wherein the word has been used in any Judicial
proceeding, to express the establishment of a
charge against a party whereon his pumshment
1s to follow. Respect for your Honorable Court
and consequently for those who act in authority
under it, alone enables your memorialist to sup-
press those feelings of indignation which almost
force themselves mnto utterance, when he thinks
how, after toiling for all the better years of his life
in this country, having by honest industry and
attention to his duties, acquired the respect and
oood will of his superiors, and of the public ; and
by systematic and unremitting frugality denying
himself every luxury (except m the article of a
eood education to his children) acquiring some
little property, to find himself at the moment
when, exhausted in health, he was about to retire
on his pension, exposed to suspicions of miscon-
duct, those suspicions ripened into belief by the
breath of malevolence and falsehood in his ab-
sence, the belief fostered into presumptions upon
prejudices without proof imbibed in secret. Every
explanation of your memorialist disbelieved, every
forgetfulness by others of facts favorable to him
taken to amount to demal of the facts themselves,
and a character of 40 years standing and respecta-
bility, destroyed by the fhiat of authority, and
the hard gained bread, of nearly half a century’s
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earning, taken out of his mouth at the moment
when he was expecting to obtain the fruits of his
labour and his frugality. And as an additional
proof of the prejudiced feeling which the Commas-
sioners entertained towards your memorialist he
must call to the notice of your Honorable Court
that these two Thannahs are mentioned In the
report as if they stood alone and formed a parti-
cular instance of favoritism to Mutty Loll Seal,
(this your memorialist trusts he has already fully
rebutted) but the fact is, there were about 40 old
Thannahs in different parts of the Town of Cal-
cutta, which all became equal nuisances to their
respective neighbourhoods. The Police would have
been exceedingly glad if they could have let every
one upon the like terms as the Burra Bazar and
Kubberdangah Thannahs were let to Mutty Loll
Seal, namely, that of repair and abatement of thg
nuisance and at the same time some rent. A
complaint was lodged at the Police by’ Mr. Bid-
dell the attorney, of the Waterloo Thannah as an
excessive nuisance to the neighbourhood, Mr.
Paxton of the adjoining premises offered to take
that Thannah at a rent of 10 Rupees, and has
since occupied it under such tenancy without any
conditions of repair. Your memorialist until Mr.
Patton’s ¢onsent to the arrangement was obtained,
did not put Mr. Paxton in possession of the
Thannah. After which he regularly paid the rent,
not to your memorialist but (as your memorialist)
holioves on receints of the Chief Magistrate. 1f
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the receipts for the rent of the Waterloo Street
Thannah were regularly sent in, there must have
been some reason for Mr. Patton (though he
may have forgotten it) not to have presented the
Bills of the Burra Bazar and Kubberdangah
Thannahs, these three Thannahs so let are now 1n
repair. Two of them are still let. The remainder
of the Thannahs which could not be let are fast
faling to ruin. If your memorialist 1s justly
chargeable with favoritism to Mutty Loll Seal for
the two Thannahs, he would be equally lable to
the accusation of favoring Mr. Paxton; but that
would have lessened the inferene of peculiar favor
to Mutty Loll Seal, therefore no mention of
another Thannah having been let, nor any of the
strong motives which there was on public grounds
to let all the Thannahs, was made by the Com-
missioners. Your memorialist hopes he wrongs
the Commissioners in the belief that the suppres-
sion of this part of the case, for your memorialist

s not purely accidental.
KZ 19th. The next charge agamnst your memorial-

1s of his having allowed unchecked the pre-
valence of gambling in the Dhurrumtollah Bazar.
This forms the substance of the 20th paragraph
of the letter*to the Chief Magistrate and the 21st
of the Report of the Commissioners, @hd chiefly
rests on a supposed conversation between your
memorialist and Mr. Hume the Magistrate, about
a year or year and a half before he (Mr. Hume ) was
examined. Your memorialist again distinctly de-
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nies that such conversation on the subject of
Gambling in the Dhurrumtollah Bazar, or any
conversation on the subject of Gambling there ever
took place between himself and Mr. Hume, until
such time as mentioned by me before the Com-
missioners. Doubtless Mr. Hume thinks he had
such conversation, or conversations: Mr. Hume
is not very distinct, which, nor is he more precise
as to where and when this conversation, or these
conversations arose or took place. ¢ Gambling
cases” says Mr. Hume, “have also come before
me, and on my speaking to Mr. McCann,” &c. 1s the
only way, in which Mr. Hume defines or describes
the conversation, or conversations. Circumstances
satisfy your memorialist that his memory 1s not
at fault. The conversation or conversations must
“have taken place with some other officer of the
Police ; and your memorialist has strong suspi-
cions as to the person with whom it, or they, did
take place, but it is enough to say that none such
did take place with your memorialist. On the
supposition, however, that it did take place, your
memorialist asks your Honorable Court to de-
termine what it proves against him; Mr. Hume
states that it created an impression in his mind
that the excuse (supposed to be of your memorial-
ist) was &vasive. He seems, in your memorialist’s
absence to have inoculated the Commissioners
with the same impression. The impression does
not prove the fact, that it was evasive, nor that
vour memorialist had neelected his duty. For the
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rest there 1s nothing but hearsay evidence. ‘“ Mr.
Drew was told by the late Mr. Daunt” the Depu-
ty Superintendent, as far as 18 months back, or
even more, of the division ‘“ not to interfere with
the Dhurrumtollah Bazar till he had spoken to
Mr. McCann,” and the next morning the late Mr.
Daunt 1s said to have told Mr. Drew what Mr.
McCann is supposed to have smd : this may be about
two years ago or more, and Mr. Burnes says, he
“heard Mr. Daunt so tell Mr. Drew. 'The only
~ thing which Mr. Drew and Mr. Ochme clearly
prove, is that they allowed Gambling to go on
openly before their eyes, in the Dhurrumtolliah
Bazar in day light. They had therefore something
to screen themselves from and a motive to say the
Deputy Superintendent permitted it. They nei-
ther prove that your memorialist said it, or per-
mitted it. Mr. Farrell, the Deputy Superintendent
of the Division says, it is about 15 months, since he
heard there was such an order as that mentioned
by Mr. Drew ; and that he (Mr. Farrell) imme-
diately countermanded it. It could not have been -
considered a very stringent order which a Deputy
Superintendent took upon himself to countermand .
‘““ without proper reference to superior authority
in the matter.”” Mr. Daly, a person in whose per-
sonal integrity, the Commissioners with great rea-
son, are disposed to place much confidence, says,
that he never saw any partiality shewn to Mutty
Loll Seal while he (Mr. Daly) was in the division ;
that ¢ he had always a sharp native officer to look
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after the Gambling, but the man never gave him
information about Gambling in the Bazar, though
he did about places outside.” The Commission-
ers appear to think that Mr. Daly was in ignor-
ance of any Gambling going on in the Bazar, but
to ascribe the circumstance of Mr. Daly not hav-
ing heard of the practice while he was in charge
to other causes than to the absence of Gambling at
that period. Admitting that the Gambling went
on in the Bazar, and that Mr. Daly was in igno-
rance of 1t, your memorialist asks why it should
be less capable of credit, that he was in like igno-
rance from similar causes, as well as Mr. Daly,
whose duty lay in the immediate division where
it was practised, your memorialist’s duties only
very occasionally leading him into the Dhurrum-
tollah Bazar where he might have had opportunity
of personal observation of it, if the Gamblers-
would have made such an ostentatious display of
it as 1s represented. Your memorialist, however,
need hardly observe that any of the European
Superintendents of the Police (not known to sanc-
tion it as Mr. Drew and Mr. Ochme admit they
did) and more especially your memorialist himself
would be the last person before whom tbe native
Gamblers would exercise their playing, all the
ensignia of which consists of a mere tetotam and
a small square piece of cloth marked as a chess-
board which are removed in an instant upon any

alarm being given, to se€cure which the gamblers
alwave have nersong on the wateh My Drowr
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“and Mr. Ochme may passibly be able to account
for their having personally witnessed the preva-
lence of it in the Bazar, without having made any
report of it to the Police, and ascertaining the real
existence or non-existence of a supposed order
which Mr. Farrell took upon himself immediately
to countermand without superior authority. He
does not say how such countermand was issued
and whether in writing or not. The 1dea of
such supposed order would hardly account for
their not reporting the circumstance regularly to
the Police, and receiving explicit instructions
thereon. Your memorialist also would beg to
draw the attention of your Honorable Court to
the date assigned by Mr. Hume for the supposed
conversation with your memorialist on the subject
of Gambling in the Dhurrumtollah Bazar, which
J4f it had taken place must have been very near-
ly about the time when Mr. Daly was Deputy
Superintendent of that division, and says that he
was in entire ignorance of Gambling being preva-
lent in the Bazar. How then was your memorial-
ist to have acquired that knowledge which would
be necessary to have enabled him to have carried
on the conversation in question on that subject,
when the Deputy Superintendent of the division
was not aware that Gambling tock place in the
Bazar, or that any partiality was shewn to Mutty
Loll Seal. If such an order had existed at that
time would not the Deputy Superintendent of the
division have been aware of it? With reference
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to the evidence of Mr. N. Baillie on the subject,
there may be other reasons than his being uncon-
nected with the Police for his perfect acquaintance
with all that was going on amongst the Gamblers
which they would never have exhibited before
any one connected with that department. It is
quite correct as staled in the Report that to this
charge your memorialist opposed a general denial
on the subject of Gambling in the Bazar, as
reported ; (and no doubt believed to be called
correctly reported,) by Mr. Hume, and of all
knowledge on the subject until very lately. Your
memorialist’s statement is also correctly men-
tioned in the Report of the Commissioners. That
denial and statement, your memorialist reiterates,
notwithstanding the statement of the Commis-
sioners that they “ cannot see how his disclaimer
of all acquaintance with the existence of the prac-
tice or of a thing so notorious as Guffoor Khan-
samah’s connection with it can be credited.” Your
memorialist, however, distinctly disputes that
there 1s any direct testimony to the long continu-
ed prevalence of Gambling in the Bazar, or at least

““ Mr. McCann’s cognizance of it” as stated by
the Commissioners. There was no direct evidence
whatever of your memorialist’s cognizance of it,
and he submits that the Commissioners could not
have credited Mr. Daly’s ignorance of the preva-
lence of Gambling in the Bazar when he was

Deputy Supermtendent of the division and have
found 1+ 1imnoscible to eredit vour memaortalict’c
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ignorance of it until lately, without having imbib-
ed a very strong prejudice against your memo-
rialist which he feels most unjust towards him
20th. The Champatollah case forms the rext
oeround of dismissal as stated in the 11th para-
graph of the letter to the Chief Magistrate and
the 22d paragraph of the Report of the Commis-
sioners. Your memorialist certainly admits that
he did think the conduct of Inspector Lancaster
so far censurable that he thought the shooting of
the dog and discharging the Pistol in that part of
the Native Town an act of indiscretion: and so
far, but not otherwise, he censured the act of the
Inspector. Your memorialist would have thought
that the evidence of Mr. Longueville Clarke the
Barnister, which the Commissioners cite at length
22d paragraph of the Report, would have satisfied
,any person (who had not formed aforegone con-
clusion) that your memorialist could not have had
any feeling of dissatisfaction with Lancaster, or
any sinister motive in his removal. Lancaster cer-
tainly was a very excellent, active, energetic and
daring Police Officer: 1t was this opinion of him
which made your memorialist feel that it was
more necessary to check what he thought an
exuberance of energy, (though your memonalist
had no intention in any way of pulishing the
Inspector) by his removal to the Colootollah
division, which he did so as in no way to appear
even as an act of punmishment and not until the
dog-shooting case was finally disposed of. The
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Champatollah division is in the heart of the
Native Town. The Colootollah division is a part
of the Town where many European sailors resort;
and where it is necessary to have an Inspector of
intelligence and energy. Your Memorialist did
not think the Inspector employed in the Coloo-
tollah division was equal to the circumstances
which he was occasionally placed, which Inspec-
tor Lancaster would be. Your memorialist also
thought that the removal of Inspector Lancaster
from the Champatollah division was desirable in

consequence of the excitement which had been
created both in the Police, and in the inhabitants
in that quarter, consequent on the disputes arising
out of the Dog Case, and with this view amongst
other reasons he removed Inspector Lancaster
from the Champatollah to the Colootollah division
as soon as the case was finally disposed of, lest
the unjust prejudices which the natives had imbib-
ed against him might lead to the ebullition of
further excitement and disturbance. The Com-
missioners say in their report (about the 2d page
of paragraph 22), ““we are satisfied that the
matter was arranged and Inspector Lancaster
transferred to another part of the Town with
some reference to the interference and interest of
Mutty Loll Seal in the case.” Of whatever the
Commissioners may have been ¢ satisfied,” what-
ever may have been passing in their minds as to

the “some reference to the interference and 1n-
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““ gatisfaction,” a more ideal fancy of *‘the inter-
ference and interest of Mutty Loll Seal,” mn any
degree influencing your memorialist in the case,
could not have been  presumed.” Mutty Loll
Seal certainly interested himself very greatly
on behalf of the natives of that neighbourhood,
whom your memorialist believes to have been in
some way related to and connected with him,
and was very bitter and angry against the Police,

and against Inspector Lancaster especially, but
your memorialist only interested himself as far as
he could with propriety for the Police, whom on
the whole he considered to be very ill used, and
in no degree took part against Inspector Lancas-
ter, but. quite the contrary. Mutty Loll Seal
does not live any where in or in the neighbour-
hood of the Champatollah division, but interested
himself merely for his friends in that Quarter.
He liveg in Colootollah division and not far from
the Thannah. ‘It would have been a somewhat
extraordinary desire on the part of Mutty Loll
Seal to have wished that the Police Inspector of
the division in which he (Mutty Loll Seal) lived
should have been one with whom he had been
brought into personal and hostile contact. All
persons, and especially natives, would rather be
upon' friendly than unfriendly terms with the
Police Officer, at the head of their district, and
yet it is assumed that your memorialist was

guided in the removal bf Inspector Lancaster
o ot o Lok ba bk bntha DA lantallabh divician
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by a desire to serve and please Mutty Loll Seal,
and it is upon the ground of the Commissioners
being so satisfied that the matter was arranged
“ with some reference to the interference and
interest of Mutty Loll Seal” without shewing the
mode in which the interference was exercised or
how his interest was to be thereby promoted, that
this is made, contrary to every probability, and
to the express denial of your memorialist, one of
the grounds on which he is deprived of his situa-
tion, his character and his hard-earned pension.
~ 91st. The three prior cases are all founded upon
the supposed influence exercised by Mutty Loll
Seal on your memorialist.  The Commissioners in
the 18th paragraph of their report say: “ It has not
appeared to us that Mr. McCann was habitually
subject to influence on the part of Mutty Loll
Seal or of any other resident of the Town, on the
contrary Mr. McCann’s favorite Officer was the
Inspector Gunga Ram whom Mutty Loll Seal was
exceedingly anxious, but failed in his endeavours, to
remove from employment.” And yet with this
declaration negativing any habitual influence of
Mutty Loll Seal over your memorialist the fore-
going three charges against him are considered to
have been established as effected by the “ occa-
sional” influence of Mutty Loll Seal upon such
grounds as your memorialist has taken leave to
examine, and comment upon, and which he trusts
your Honorable Court *will not think in any one

o _1-... . oma Al - f-*ll““:ﬁlﬁ e = e
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ogrounds for depriving a faithful servant of 40
years, of his character and his pension ; but your
memorialist cannot quit this part of the subject
without drawing the attention of your Honorable
Court to the extraordinary situation in which he
is placed by the Report of the Commissioners and
his consequent dimissal from his appointment.
It was considered that the Chief Magistrate and
Major Birch were peculiarly open to the Imputa-
tion of being under the influence of Mutty Loll
Seal, and that a late Officer of the Police was also
~ open to the like imputation, from being respective-
ly largely in debt to and consequently so far in the
power of Mutty Loll Seal. It was found on the
Police investigation that the Chief Magistrate and
Major Birch were so indebted, although in the
Chief Magistrate’s Case, at least, it was consider-
ed by the Commissioners that he did not allow
his being 1n that situation to influence Impro-
‘perly his conduct to that person ; Major Birch lost
his situation in the Police, but was allowed to re-
turn to his regiment. The Chief Magistrate was
continued In his situation until the month of April
1850 last, when he was appointed Sessions Judge
of Burdwan and consequently vacated his appoint-
ment as Chief Magistrate ; your memorialist men-
tions this not by any means regretting the results
as to Mr. Patton or Major Birch, excepting it

may be to express his regret that they should
either have In any degree suffered. Your me-
morialist was shewn to be in no deeree indebted or
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in the personal power of Mutty Loll Seal or of
any other person, he was wholly independent in

pecuniary circumstances of every person in the
world. The Commissioners Report that your me-

morialist was free from all ¢ habitual” influence of
Mutty Loll Seal. It is impossible as your memo-
rialist has not been supplied with a copy of the
Report further than as it relates to his own indi-
vidual Case for him to state what has been the
Report with reference to the Chief Magistrate
and Major Birch upon this point, but he doubts
whether any thing more favourable could have
been reported of either of them, than that they
were not ‘“ habitually subject to influence on the
part of Mutty Loll Seal or any other resident of
the Town.” If your memorialist therefore is to
be justly charged with undue favour or connivance
towards Mutty Lell Seal, his favour and conni-
vance would appear as far as the Report of the
Commissionersis concerned gratuitous and without
motive orinducement,and unless some unexpressed
motive or inducement is supposed or “ presumed”
by the Commissioners militating with your memo-
-rialist’s duty towards his employers your memori-
alist is at a loss to conceive upon what they must
have come to the conclusion of this favour towards
Mutty Loll Seal so capriciously exercised that
your memorialist would assist him to the pur-
chase of a Thannah at its full value, aid him in

getting a lease of two old Thannahs at a full and
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with Gamblers, remove a European Inspector
with whom he had quarrelled from a district far
removed from Mutty Loll Seal’s residence to place
him near his own residence, where the Inspector
might interfere with Mutty Loll Seal or his
dependents and yet would stop short in gratify-
ing his anxiety for the removal of the native
Inspector. Your memorialist confesses to be
unable to reconcile the conclusions formed on the
most doubtful and imprebable points relating to
“ particular instances” with the direct admission
that he was not under the “ habitual influence of
Mutty Loll Seal” and of his opposition to him on
a matter in which he was ¢ exceedingly anxious.”
Your memorialist, however, finds himself the only
Officer of Police after being so expressly acquitted
or silently exonerated, dismissed from the employ-
" ment of the Honorable East India Company, for,
amongst other three charges, that of undue favor
and connivance towards Mutty Loll Seal. Against
this he was no alternative for Justice, except an
appeal to the unbiassed judgment of your Honor-
able Court. He now proceeds to an examination
of the two remaining charges each of which he.
cannot but consider as equally unsupported by
evidence with those which have preceded and as
resting solely on what the Commissioners in their
Report ““ surmise” and ‘‘ presume” or upon the
misconception of the tenor and meaning of the
Report by the person who drafted it under the

dirvertinn of Hic Honar the Denntv (GGovernor of
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22nd. The fourth charge is, that of Sib Chun-
der Mullick, which forms the subject-of the 12th
paragraph of the letter to the Chief Magistrate
and what your memorialist presumes to be the
23rd paragraph of the Report (but 1t is not num-
bered in the copy furnished to your memorialist).
Upon this charge, which he anticipated, he has
largely remarked in the 25th and 26th paragraphs
of his memorial to the Governor General. The
observations which will there be found on the
gross improbability of his having been in any
way concerned in screening Sib Chunder Mullick
from any punishment to which he was obnoxious
on the charge of the Bank of Bengal, are so full
and your memorialist presumes to think so con-
vincing that it would be mnexcusable in your me-
morialist to repeat them here : he respectfull and
earnestly solicits a reference to them, with a due
consideration of their weight and value.by your
Honorable Court: but he cannot refrain from
copying here (with some comments upon it) the
following passage from the 12th paragraph of the
letter to the Chief Magistrate. “ The Committee
sum up their opinion of Mr. McCann’s econduct
in this case in the following terms.” ‘¢ But that
he (Mr. M¢Cann) long connived at Sib Chunder
Mullick’s escape from the Law, for the due en-
forcement of which he was specially responsible,
we cannot see any valid reason to doubt. The
most favorable supposition for Mr. McCann is,

dthint hatrine hoory aware nf thoe 1rreonilar nracnond
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ings in Major Birch’s office respecting Sib Chun-
der Mullick’s discharge, he did not, i his sub-
ordinate capacity, choose to expose them by active
interference on his part, unless forced to do so by
circumstances. Even this supposition however would
require us to record our opinion of a very gross
breach of duty on Mr. McCann'’s part.”

Your memorialist would respectfully submat
that the question whether he long connived at
Sib Chunder Mullick’s escape from the Law, 1s
not whether the Commissioners were unable  to
see any valid reason to doubt,” but whether they
could see any valid reason, in the shape of evi-
dence, to form a reasonable judgment that such
was the case ; your memorialist submits that there
is no evidence whatever reasonably to support such
an wfounded belief. He utterly repudiates *“ the
" most favorable supposition” which the Commis-
sioners .have formed for him. With whatever
irregularity there might be in Major Birch’s office
respecting Sib Chunder Mullick’s discharge, he
has no possible concern: and assuredly he consl-
ders that in *‘ his subordinate capacity’” he would
not have been justified (had any irregularities
come to his notice) in interfering with what any
Magistrate of the Police might have thought
compatible with his duty in the discharge of any
person brought before him upon any charge.
What the Commissioners intend by the last
sentence of that paragraph: ¢This supposition
however would require us to record our opinion
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of a very gross breach of duty on Mr. McCann’s.
part.” Your memorialist is at an utter loss to
conceive what duty in the supposition of the
Commissioners was imposed on your memorialist
to perform ? How could the warrant, although it
had never been cancelled, or recalled, be consi-
dered in full force ? after having been satisfied
(although it was not executed) by the voluntary
appearance under it, of Sib Chunder Mullick ?
The object of the warrant was to compel the ap-
pearance of Sib Chunder Mullick under a eertain
charge specified in the Warrant ; he veluntarily
appeared, after some time, to answer that charge,
and was dismissed upon 1t by order of the Magis-
trate before whom the charge was then brought.
With that part of the proceedings, your memorial-
1st had no connection whatever, and had no kngw -
ledge of it ; he was not present nor did his duty
in any degree require that he should be present.
A fresh charge might have been made, and a fresh
warrant issued thereon against Sib Chunder Mul-
lick at any time thereafter ; but your memorial-
ist submits, that no Police Officer would have
been considered justified in arresting Sib Chun-
der Mullick on a warrant on which he had volun-
tarily appeared and had been discharged, although
he had never been arrested under that warrant,
but had satisfied it by voluntary appearance.
23rd. The final charge 1s the misappropriation
of property, coming Into your memorialist’s pos-
session in the Police ; which forms the subject of
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the 13th paragraph of the letter to the Chief
Magistrate, and of the 24th of the Report of the
Commissioners, and is also the subject to which
the 27th and 28th clauses of your memorialist’s
former appeal (Appendix A) to the Governor-
General relate.

The 13th paragraph of the letter to the Chief
Magistrate commences :—“ One of the most seri-
ous and systematic mal-practices that have been
reported, namely, the misappropriation of pro-
perty coming into the custody of the Police 1s
brought home to Mr. McCann.” Your memorial-
ist begs respectfully to deny the correctness of
this statement, he denies that either any *° most
serious and systematic” or other “ mal-practices”
“ or any misappropriation of property coming
intg the custody of the Police” is ““ brought home
to” your memorialist, or so reported by the
Commissioners, and for this he refers to the Re-
port itself. The letter to the Chief Magistrate
concludes, ¢ that there was misappropriation,
His Honor observes is certain. Your memorial-
ist respectfully observes that there was no evi-
dence before the Commissioners to support, and
the Report of the Commissioners does not sup-
port the allegation of such “ certanty,” so far at
least as your memorialist is concerned.  Before
observing on the general nature of the Report
your memorialist would draw the attention of
your Honorable Court to two passages of the

24th paragraph of the Report, which in his judg-
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ment evince the eagerness with which the Com-
missioners adopt any notion, or seize upon any
supposed fact, and state it without hesitation,
which in their opinion would create a feeling
prejudicial to your memorialist, or take away
from the effect of evidence in his favor, or add
weight to 1t if adverse to him. In the above
mentioned paragraph of their Report is this sen-
tence; ““ Mr. McCannah, a near relative of Mr.
McCann ;> Mr. McCannah* is the half brother,
by the same mother, of one of your memorialist’s
son’s-in-law ;¥ but i1s in no way whatever related
to your memorialist, nor was he upon terms of
intimacy with Mr. McCannah: (although there
was no disagreement between them) Mr. McCan-
nah did not even visit at your memorialist’s, whe
was very little in the habit of visiting at all, and
still less so with those who were employed in the
Police. If Mr. McCannah was ever in the house
of your memorialist ; it was merely when matters
of business might bring him there. The Com-
missioners again observe in the same paragraph.
““ Mr. McCannah’s statement as to the disappear-
“ance of a new Quadrant in a Mahogany case from
Mr. McCann’s room is particularly to be noted,
in consequence of his close connection with Mr.
McCann.”  His close connection with your me-
morialist, was as above stated, which is capable
of ready proof, and he hopes that it will be ** par-
ticularly noted” that 16 1s so, by your Honorable
Court in forming a judgment of the feeling which

Foie B L B |
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the Commissioners allowed to get the better of
their judgment as to your memorialist. Your
memonalist again begs to refer to the Report
itself for any proof whatever to be found re-
ported of misappropriation, by your memorialist
of any specific property or any property whatever.
Whatever delinquency of which they may have
mentally considered your memorialist to have
been guilty, however they may think him re-
sponsible for what they considered-a loose mode
of conducting business respecting property com-
g nto his possession in the Police, which the
Commissioners observe, ‘“ appears to have existed
from a period anterior te Mr. Patton’s appoint-
ment to the Chief Magistracy.” Although they
think Mr. Patton ‘‘ should have felt himself dis-
tinctly and specially responsible for the proper
management of the business of every branch of
the Executive Police,” there is no charge, or
pretence of charge, of such misappropriation by
your memorialist. The only article clearly shewn
“to be not forth-coming” is the Quadrant, which
however taken away or removed is a misap-
propriation far from ‘“brought home,” or even
reported to have been committed, by your memo-
rialist. With this exception which was, and which
your memorialist is prepared te prove to have
been In your memorialist’s room when he left on
sick leave the 14th of June, 1849, there is nothing
shewn not to be forth-eoming. The mode of
taking charge of, and keeping the property in
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the Police, is the same which has prevailed with
reference to such property, not only for a period
anterior, but for many years anterior to the ap-
pomntment of Mr. Patton. It existed at the time
when a prior enquiry into the conduct of the
Police duties was instituted by Government in
the year 1830, when no more books were kept in
the department of your memorialist, than has ever
since been kept, up to the time of your memorial-
1st being dismissed from his appointment. When
the gentlemen appointed by Government that
year instituted their enquiries into the conduct-
ing of the business of the Police, including your
memorialist’s office, they were perfectly satisfied
(and so reported to the Government) as to the
books which were then kept in the Police office.
Your memorialist does not presume to object
to the judgment of the present Commissioners~
disapproving of what they consider a logse mode
on the part of your memorialist in conducting
the business of his office, or to contend on
that of the former Gentlemen approving it that
your memorialist’s management in that re-
-spect ought to have been considerd satisfactory,
1t would be unbecoming him to do so, but your
memorialist would respectfully submit to your
Honorable Court, that it can hardly be surprising

that what had been approved by the former
Committee, and had gone on for years under

Mr. McFarlane, an int‘elligent, a vigilant, and an
attentive Magistrate, and that that mode of con-
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ducting business which had been continued under
Mr. Patton, (wwhom the Committee consider to
have had full power to regulate and direct every
department of the executive Police,) without any
suggestion of fault, or desire for alteration, should
have been considered by your memorialist suffi-
cient and satisfactory. No writer in particular
was allowed to your memorialist for keeping
books or accounts ; which if to be kept in” detail
by your memorialist, would have occupied a
considerable portion of his time, already labori-
ously and constantly occupied in more active
duties. Under these circumstances no necessity
for altering the old and accustomed course pur-
sued for years without disapproval, occurred to
your memorialist, knowing that, as far as he was
concerned, he kept memoranda which would
: enable him at once to know to whom every arti-
cle In his possession belonged, and of course, not
entertaining those suspicions of himself which
the Commissioners seem early to have imbibed of
his conduct, he never conceived that what had
been approved for so many years, and by so
many parties, would be deemed unsatisfactory.
Having possession of the key of the iron chest in
which all properties such as money or Jewels
were deposited and marked with distinctive
marks, as they came into his custody, he consi-
dered that every thing of value was safe from
abstraction. Your memorialist cannot think that
they would have been safer if the key of the chest
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had not remained exclusively with your memo-
rialist, however the misappropriation depends
entirely upon the “ suspicions” of the Commis-
sioners, and of those, wpon whom, like Mr.
Chick, they depended for information. Mr. Chick
says, “I have heard it stated generally (is this
hearsay ?) that property belonging to persons dy-
mg Intestate, or without representatives or rela-
tives, coming into the possession of the Police, has
for the most part never been accounted for.”
Your memorialist would observe that it is some-
what extraordinary that in this which Mr. Chick
believes to be a matter of universal notoriety,
not one person should come forward in the vari-
ous cases of intestacy, theft, or forgery, which
were productive of deposits in the Police, to
claim a single article of which some friends or
relatives may hava died possessed, which came
into the possession of the Police ; that no person
who has been robbed should have had’a claim
for any such property not forth-coming ; that no
person who has suffered by forgery should have
lost any of the notes supposed to be absorbed in
. the vortex of your memorialist’s iron chest. Not
one case was established against your memonalist.
The Commissioners indeed expressly say in con-
nection with their enquiries, with a reference to
the account of values of “ Bank Notes forwarded
from the Bank to the Police on account of notes
supposed to have been stolen, no well founded
complaint has reached us of improper conduct
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under this head.” The Commissioners indeed
consider that ‘ the sum carried to credit on ac-
count of escheats, or unclaimed property is very
small”’ but they * of course only speak from a very
general supposition on the point,” they certainly say
‘““ the principal person upon whom the responsi-
bility in such matters must rest 1s undoubtedly
Mr. McCann, the items which have come in this
manner to our knowledge are not of important
amount, but they point at what has been the
opening for abuses of the same kind.” In the
commencement of the last passage of the 13th
paragraph they say “1it is to Mr. McCann we think
that the allegations of direct misconduct have
been most distinctly brought home. Having
noticed 1n previous paragraphs our opinion iIn
respect to his culpability in the different in-
- stances of doubt as to his proceedings which have
come under our cognizance we need not here re-
capltulate those statements,” and they add a
marginal note to the instances of doubf showing
that such instances of doubt are the five instances
to which the letter to the Chief Magistrate refers,
and exclusive of the letting of the old Thannahs
which is not alluded to (together with another
relating to supposed improper confinement of
two natives at the Thannah, which intervenes in
such marginal note between the two following
notes “ abstraction of property by parties wn the
Police” and * habitual total want of account and
check 1 resnect to bronertv comino nder charoe
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to the Police,” which two latter heads your me-
morialist supposes to allude to the consolidated
charge contained in the 13th paragraph of the
letter to the Chief Magistrate. Your Honorable
Court will observe that in this note of the Com-
missioners the statement of ¢ abstraction of pro-
perty is stated to be by parties in the Police,”
not by your memortalist, whilst in the 13th para-
graph of the letter to the Chief Magistrate it is
stated, that “the misappropriation of property
coming Into the custody of the Police is drought
home to Mr. McCann.” Your memorialist has
already stated that he is not aware of any thing
which can be said to have heen shewn to have
been misappropriated beyond the Quadrant re-
moved from his room, which it was stated by
Mr. McCannah, might have been removed from
your memorialist’s room by Mr. Farrell without
your memorialist’s knowledge. What was the
meaning of Mr. McCannah in this evidence your
memorialist does not know. It will be recollected
that Mr. McCannah officiated as Deputy Superin-
tendent of Police during the absence of your
memorialist on sick leave in 1849 ; he is prepared
to prove that the Quadrant was in your memo-
rialist’s roogn when he left in June 1849, and was
not there when he returned. If Mr. Farrell could
have taken it out of your memorialist’s room
without his knowledge it will not be doubted
that he could take it “out of Mr McCannah’s
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McCannah either knew, or supposed that Mr.
Farrell had taken the Quadrant, and meant in-
directly to accuse him of so doing; or whether
Mr. Farrell did or did not take the Quadrant, your
memorialist has no knowledge whatever ; nor has
he any as to what became of the Quadrant, his
responsibility to make good the amount of it, al-
though lost whilst he was on sick leave, he has no
wish to dispute, but he disputes entirely any right
that it gives to impeach his character for integrity,
and as a faithful servant to the Government in his
office in the Police. For the “ habitual total want
of account and check in respect to property com-
ing under the charge of the Police.” Your me-
morialist cannot but think that it would be a hard
measure of punishment if he were to be dismiss-
ed, and punished by loss of pension, when, if the
" system which had prevailed for years was ob-
jectionable, the Chief Magistrate was invested, as
the Commissioners consider, with full powers to
order and direct its correction, and to substitute
such mode as he might think more calculated -
to secure justice and protection to parties whose
properties might come into the possession of the
Police. Your memorialist perhaps ought to m-
clude in the exception of property misappropriated
the two watches and Trichinopoly chains (value
each watch and chain about 20 Rupees) lent by
your memorialist to the Inspectors of the Police
to assist them in the performance of their duty.
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upon this subject than what is contained in the
27th paragraph of his memorial to the Governor
General, to which he again solicits the attention
of your ITonorable Court. He has already to apo-
logize to your Honorable Court for the length to
which he has found himself driven to comment
upon the letter addressed to the Chief Magistrate
by command of His Honor the Deputy Governor
of Bengal and the Report of the Commissioners of
Police office enquiry. Justice to himself forbade
his shrinking from a full examination of the
ogrounds on which his dismissal with loss of
pension was supposed to be justiied. Your me-
morialist feels and protests his entire mnocence
of every charge against him. Your memoriahst
trusts that your Honorable Court will be satisfied
that those charges have nothing better to support
them, against the solemn protestation of your
memorialist of their groundlessness, the preju-
dices, the suspicions, the surmises, the presump-
tions, and the belief, built upon them, which
- they have finally recorded not as their belef, but
as their doubts as to the proceedings of your
-memorialist as far as they bave come under their
cognizance. Your memorialist respectfully sub-
mits and cqufidently trusts that such doubts are
not sufficient without proof (which 1s wholly
wanting) to justify charges such as His Honor
the Deputy Governor has advanced agamst your
memorialist. Your memorialist as confidently
«submite that the Revport does not sanction the
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assertion of His Honor towards your memorialist
that “that Report discloses cases against him of
such ¢ extreme official malversation,” that his re-
tention in the service of the Government of Ben-
gal is impossible.” Your memorialist trusts that
your Honorable Court will be of opmion that
no sufficient case was made for his removal, and
that it was not justified under the circumstances
which he has thus attempted to bring more dis-
tinctly to your notice which wholly failed to
“bring home”” one act of misconduct during the
30 years (out of 40 spent in your serviece) in which
he has been employed.

In conclusion, your memorialist trusts he will
be excused In again earnestly entreating the pa-
tient attention and consideration of your Honora-
ble Court to his former memorial to the Gover-
nor General and to the foregoing contents of this
his memorial to your Honorable Court, and that
your Honorable Court will be pleased to direct
the Government of Bengal to restore your memo-
rialist to his appointment, or at least to inform
them that on full consideration of the Report of
the Commissioners your Honorable Court finds.
no evidence whereon the dismissal of your memo-
rialist could be justly founded, and tq, direct that
your memorialist shall be admitted to his full
pension as a retired officer in the service of the
Honorable East India Company on its Bengal
Establishment, and your ‘memorialist shall ever
pray. . o

Calcutta, August, 1850.



APPENDIX.

TO THE MOST NOBLE,

ANDREW, MARQUIS OF DALHOUSIE, K T.

Babernor Seneral of India.

P S

The Memorial of James Joseph MeCann late Officiat-
ing Superintendent of the Caleutta Police.

RESPECTFULLY SHEWETH,

Ist. That your memorialist has been more than
40 years in India, and more than 30 years in the Police of
Calcutta. Your memorialist at the age of 15 years entered
into the Service of the Honorable East India Company asa
recruit of Artillery, and arrived in Bengal in 1809, -
2nd. Your memorialist served in the Artillery until 1817,
during which time for steadiness of conduct he was soon after
his arrival in the country made a Non-Commissioned Officer
and ultimately appointed Pay Serjeant and Head Writer in the
Office of the Assistant Adjutant General of Artillery.
3d. In 1817 your memorialist was recommended by Major
{zeneral Hardwicke. then Commandant of Artillery, to the
Notice of the Most Noble the Marquis of Hastings, (overnor-
General of India, and by bim appointed Serjeant Major of Fort
William, and Fhead Writer in the Town Major’s Ofiice.
4th. In 1818 on the recommendation of Col. Hennessy
Town Major, and Sir Joseph Nicholls, your memorialist was
appointed Serjeant Major of Town Guards in the Police of
Calcutta, in which situation he remained until 1831, when on
the recommendation of the Magistrates and Superintendent he
was appointed Deputy Superintendent of Police, which post he
uninterruntedlv bield until. on Caotain Hick’s being ordered to
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join the army in the Punjaub your memorialist was appointed
by your Lordship to the Office of Acting Superintendent.,

5th. Your memorialist flattered himself not only that he
had invariably discharged his duty faithfully and zealously in
every post in which he had been placed, but that his services
were so estimated by the Government, by whom he had the
honor to be employed, that they had earned for him the high
approbation of his immediate Superiors in Office, and of many
tlistlngmshed persons under whose observation his services had
come, in proof of which your memorialist respectfully begs
leave to annex some of those testimonials which at varlous
times he has received as noted in the margin, in order of date,

k ‘th 1 ndix
Capt, H. 5. Montazu, and set forth in the Appe

Fort Adjt. 2th Feby. 1819, to this memorial, ‘T'he ser-
Caft HA H\‘u 11;‘1;%.”““118’?3 vices of vour memorialist have
t Adjt. 13th Nov . -

CE{]‘:: T. if_fjpmzur!m, ﬂ‘l 1 been deemed so far worthy of
; }.;'yrt flif{?t- 4}“! f&pr;th 1826, reward by the [Honorable the
. Vaughan, Lt. Col, ] TV e . . ;
Town Major. Fort W, 24, Jany. Court of Directors, that they
. l}ilaﬂa.F Seev. Bonk of Bengat would on that ground have

1. Udny, Ezq. Secy. Buank of Bengal, . . .
Vst Decr. 1633, conferred on the Son of your

T, Bracken, Fsq. Secy. Bankaf Bengal. memorialist (now unhappily
Sth Decr. 1840,

C. B. Greenlaw, Esg. late Coroner, dEE?ﬂEEd] the Apl)f)lﬂtﬂ?t!l’lt of
19th August, 1842, Assistant Surgeon in their Ser-
. Mackartune, E:q. Chief Magisirate, .
7th Jany. 1842, vice. o
Sir L. Ryan K1, Chief Justice of Ben- O6th. It was under thig 1m-
gal, 8th Jany. 1842. . s v
Masor F. W, Girch, Supde. of Police, ~ Pr€SSioN, upheld and fortified
10th Sept. 1845, by a consciousness of having
H. l{]dmfzt{}n, Esq. Coroner of Caleutta T COrYr hE
20h April, 1849) » ever served the Honorable Liast

India Company with zeal and
rectitude, that he was bold enough on learning that Captain-
Hicks had been appointed in April last a Deputy Commissioner
in the Punjaub, to apply to his honor the Deputy Governor of
Bengal, and subsequently to present a memorial to vour l.ord-
ship praying to be appointed permanently to the Office whereof
he had the honor then to be fulfilling the duties, and enumer-
ating and stating his services as hereinbefore, but before his.
memorial reached Simla, the present Superintendent of Police
had been appointed to the vacant situation, and your memo-
rialist resumed the duties of Deputy Superintengent.

7th. In the month of June, 1849, your memorialist was
compelled by severe 1llness principally oecasioned, by unremit-
ting attention to the duties of his Office, to &pply for a short
leave of absence for the purpose of the recovery of his health,
which having obtained, your memorialist proceeded to the
Indigo f.;ictmv in Jesmre of Mr. Kenny, who is married to a
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appointed to enquire into the state of the Police were appoint-
ed and commenced their sittings,

Bth. Your memorialist was astonished to find from the
public papers that he was the subject of various accusations
before the Cowmmissioners. The present Superintendent of
Police Mr. Liaw, scrupled not to propagate, if not to create, a
report that your memorialist was in Calcutta during the whole
period of the Police investigation; whereas your memorialist
never was during any part of them in Calcutta until finding the
advantage which was taken of his absence to effect his ruin and
blast his character, of nearly 40 years standing, your memo-
rialist felt compelled to return to Calcutta in self-defence,
though still in a very infirm state of health.

Oth. In support of his accusation of your memorialist still
being in Calcutta, Mr. Law stated that he had made enquiries
and that not one single letter had been dispatched through the
Post Office to your memorialist during that time. As a proof
how dangerous it is to listen to exparte statements and mere
surmises, and to consider them as supported by the statement
of what third parties (even when no reasons for suspicion of
the motives m which they originate may exist) are supposed or
represented to huve said, your memorialist begs respectfully to
observe that Mr. Law stated to the Commissioners that he had
made enquiries at the Post Office and received information from
the Post Master General and his Subordinates to the above
effect. The Post Master General denies that such information
was given to Mr. Law, or that Mr, Law had any conversation
with him (the Post Master General) or any of his Subordinates
on the subject; and your memorialist brought withhim letters
addressed to him at the factory at which he had been residing
during the interval involved in Mr. Law’s supposed enquiries
at the General Post Office bearing the mark of the regular dak.
Then and not until then, your memorialist was informed that
sich accusation was founded on an erroneous report which Mr.
Law had received from the Post Office. But how far (if the
-fact were of importance) he had received such information from
the Post Office may be doubted. The object of such accusation
was obviously to make the Commissioners believe that your
memorialist had some object to shirk and avoid the enquiry
into the state of the Police, and consequently had concealed
~ himself in Calecutta whilst he pretended to be absent for the sake
of the recovery of his health., Nothing could be more unfounded
thau the accusation, except it were the belief intended to be
engendered by it, Your memorialist was not and is not con-
scious of any cause which should have made him wish to shirk or
avold cnquirtes into the wode m-which he had ever fulfilled his
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Official duties ; but how far such unfounded surmises may have
penetrated into the minds of the Commissioners and induced
them to have come to unfavorable conclusions against your me-
morialist is a totally different question. With every respect for
the Honorable Gentlemen who acted in the Commission, and a
thorough belief in their desire not knowingly to do wrong to any
oue, and at the same time in profound ignorance of what may
have been the nature of their report to Government on the
subject of the Police investigation generally, and as to your
memorialist more particularly, (no party accused therein hav-
ing had the means of ascertaining or consequently of refuting
such report as far as it may concern itself,) your memorialist
cannot but believe that the Commissioners must have been
swayed by some feeling or belief hostile to your memoriahst
and quite unfounded if the dismissal of your memorialist was
grounded on their report.

10th., Very shortly after the sitting of the Commissioners
had terminated, your memorialist received a letter from the
Superintendent of the Police enclosing one from the Chief
Magistrate in the following terms.

No. 908.
To W. T, Law, Esq.

Superintendent of Police, Calcutta.

S1r,—Under orders conveyed in Mr, Secretary Grant’s letter
No. 1574 of date the 6th instant, I beg to inform you that His
Honor the Deputy Governor of Bengal has been pleased conse-
quent upon the report of the Committee of enquiry into the state
of the Calcutta Police Office to direct that Mr. J. J. McCann
Deputy Superintendent of Police be immediately removed from
his appointment. You are requested to give effect to his Honor’s
orders without delay, and report your having done so for the
information of the Honorable the Deputy (Governor.

I am, &ec.
(Signed) J. H. Parron,
Chief Magisirale.

Calcutta Police Office, 10th October, 1849,

In consequence of which your memorialist ig obedience to
the directions contained in Mr. Law’s letter on the 10th day of
Qctober made over charge of his Office to Mr. Roberts the
Deputy Superintendent of the 3rd Division, and Immediately
applied to the Chief Magistrate for a Copy of the Government
Letter to his address, removing or dismissing your memorialist
from the Police which he received the following day and 18 in
the following terms,
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“ Extract from a letter from the Secretary to the Government
of Bengal Judicial Department to the Chief Magistrate of Cal-
cntta No. 1574 dated 6th October, 1849,

Observing that Mr. MeCann Deputy Superintendent of Po-
lice has resumed charge of his Office, and finding that the report
of the Committee of enquiry who have received from Mr.
McCann and submitted to His Honor every explanation which
It is in that person’s power to offer, discloses cases against
him of such extreme official malversation that his retention in
the service of the Government of Bengal is impossible, the De-
puty Governor is pleased to direct bis immediate removal from
his appointment.”

True extract,
(Signed) W. 1. Harwood,
Head Clerk.

11th.  Your memorialist on receiving the last mentioned ex-
tract from the Chief Magistrate wrote on the following day
13th October to the Secretary to Government in the Judicial
Department, the following letter,

To J. P. GRANT Esq. Secy. Bengal Govt.

Sir,—By a communication from Mr, Law, Superintendent of
Police dated 10th instant accompanied by Copy of a letter to
him from the Chief Magistrate dated 10th idem. I was inform-
ed of the Deputy Governor’s orders for my immediate remov-
al from my appointment as Deputy Superintendent of Police ;
by the letter of the Chief Magistrate to Mr. Law, I Jearn that
Iny removal 18 consequent to the report of the Committee of
- ienguiry into the state of the Calcutta Police Office.

Having served the Government for a period of 40 years,
of which 31 years have been in assisting to conduct the Exe-
cutive DPolice of the City, and having in the discharge of my
duties obtained the approbation of all, under whom I have served,
and having also received commendatory testimonials from some
- of the Judges of the Supreme Court, this summary dismissal
from my appointment falls hard upon me, especially as it in-
volves the loss of character, I beg therefore that you will ob-
tain His Ionor’s sanction to my being furnished with an Extract
from the Commissioner’s report as regards my Official conduct,
that I may know the specific charge against me and upon which
His Honor had decided upon my dismissal,

I have the honor, &c.
(Signed) J. J. McCann.
Calculla 13th Oclober, 1849,
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And having received no reply thereto, again on the llth of
February, 1850, addressed the said Secretary, calling bis at-
tention to your memorialist’s letter of 13th October, 1849,
and requesting a reply thereto ; but he has never been able to ob-
tain such reply although the said Secrefary informed your me-
morialist in a personal interview that such his application would
be considered, but that the report of the Commissioners was
forwarded to the Indian Government, who he believed had for-

warded it to your Lordship.

12th. Your memorialist is not fully aware whether he is
deemed by such dismissal to have forfeited that right to the
pension to which he would otherwise be entitled according to
the rules of Government by his long and faithful services. But
as your memorialist feels that the Extract from the letter of
Government conveys an imputation on his character which is
wholly unmerited, he feels it due to himself, due to those whose
approbation he has already earned, to express his readiness
and anxiety to meet each and every charge which the Commis-
sioners may have brought forward against him which may be
supposed to justify the expression of ‘“extreme Official mal-
versation” applied to him in the Extract from the letter of
Government of the 6th of October, 1849 : and your memorial-
ist cannot abstain from entering his most solemn and energetic
protest. As cnergetic as your memorialist’s respect for his
Honorable employers, and a due sense of what he owes to them
and to the high station filled by your Lovrdship whom he ad-
dresses, will allow against the use of such an expression as “ ex-
treme Official malversation® applied to him, not only so contrary
to the real facts of the case, but contrary to any thing which, as
far as your mecmorialist is aware (from the printed evidence in
the newspapers or otherwise,) would justify the application of
such a term as that used by the Government, or by the Secre-
tary of Government, as founded on the report of the Commis-
sioners. With the utmost respect to the Honorable Company and
Court of Directors and to their Government in this country which
his military education and his conduct through life will vouch
for as unfelgned, your memorialist takes leave to dispute and
distinctly denies that he hus ever been guilty of any ‘¢ Official
malversation in the whole course of life.”’ ’

13th. Your memorialist not only is ready and anxious to
meet such charges as the report may contain, but ready and
anxions to mect every charge which may be brought by any
person against his moral charactgr in the performance of his
Police duties, or against the integrity and zeal with which he
has ever sorved the Hooorable Kast Tnidia Commpany,
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14th. Your Lordship must feel that every servant of a
liberal British Government has a right before he is convicted of
“ extreme Official malversation® to have the nature of the offence
with which he is charged distinctly stated, and to have every
opportunity of being heard in his defence. If the Government
should fiil in establishing the charges, or he should not satis-
factorily refute them, the Government would nevertheless be
able to dismiss him, but without proving charges and giving
him the opportunity of refuting them, if in his power, vour me-
morialist submits that the Government would have no right to
dismiss him with any slur upon his character, or to punish him
by the loss of a pension to which he was entitled by 40 years
servitude to receive. If they should do so and endeavour to
hx a stain upon his character on grounds which they were un-
able to establish, the Laws of his Country would enable him to
recover the damages he had sustained by the unjust imputation.
No one can dispute the full right of your memorialist’s Honor-
able employers to dismiss him at any moment they may cease
to require his services, but your memorialist, with all respect,
does dispute the right to dismiss him with any reflections on
his character which have not been established, and are inca-
pable of being established, by credible evidence. He denies
also their right (morally} to deprive your memorialist of his
pension acquired by length of faithful service upon any grounds
not so proved. The character of the witnesses before the Com-
missioners was in many instances such as to render their state-
ments wholly undeserving of belicf. No facts or at least very
few can be said to have been adduced—fewer to have been
proved. ‘The general nature of the enquiries was as té common
rumour and reports and belief of reports, second, third and
fourth-hand.

15th. It is not to be doubted that in 31 years at the head
of the subordinate Executive Police, your memorialist, coming
into collision with the multifarious characters, Native and Eu-
ropean, which compose part of the Police force of a great and
populous City—{requently in direct collision with the lower ranks
of the native community —must have made some personal ene-
mies : if he performed his duty with strictness and impartiality
he probably has excited the envy, the jealousy and malice of se-
veral of his subordinates. All things considered, and amongst
others his absence from Calcutta at the time when the enquiry
was instituted, it is somewhat extraordinary that more direct
mmputations were not endeavoured to be thrown upon your me-
morialist., Most of those which were made, were of a most
contemptible as well as most unfounded nature, and your me-
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lowed him by putting the case against him in such a course as
would satisty any fair tribunal of the truth or falsehood of the
charges against him, he would find no difficulty in proving to
the satisfaction of such a tribunal that every charge against
him was substantially untenable, that the greater part of them
were false—utterly false—that many had been grossly misre-
presented, and a false colour given to, and a fulse inference
drawn from those faets which in a few cases approached to
any thing like what they were represented before the Commis-
sloners.

16th. When your memorialist heard at the Factory of his
Son-in-law in Jessore that he was subject to such imputations,
he determined, though in very infirm health, to return. Pre-
vious to doing so he drew up (from memory alone) without
access to one single book or record of any kind, a short reply
to or explanation of the different charges brought forward
against him, and on his arrival in Calcutta gave it in. He ten-
dered himself for examination; he expressed to the Commis-
sioners his utmost readiness to give any information in his
power, and to answer any questions relating to him on which
a doubt might rest on their minds; it is true that he was in
a very weak state, and very incapable of contending with any
difficulties, but he expressed earnestly to the Commissioners
his desire that they would examine him upon every point upon
which they had any doubt—he expressed some disappointment
at not being examined on all—he was told that they attached
no importance to anything else.

17th, After such communication with the Commissioners,
your menlorialist’s dismissal from his Office fell upon him as a
most unexpected blow, and much the more so from the terms
in which it was communicated. Your memorialist thought of
entering into an examination in detail of the various topics on
which any reflection on your memorialist’s condact was endea-
voured to be cast by the various witnesses who spoke in relation
to him on the investigation: but as he has already delivered to
the Commissioners the denial and explanation which he had .
prepared upon such matter before coming down to Calcutta,
and as it would seem that neither such statements or what he
had sald on his examination, had the slightesg effect on the
Commissioners, and as they had informed your memorialist
that they attached no credit to such parts as they had not exa-
mined him upon, your memorialist, in ignorance of what may be
the contents of the report upon which the Honorable the Depu-
ty Governor founded the dismissgl of your memorialist, he has
thought it better not to attempt any thing more than the most
cursory examination of what may be sapposed to be the leading
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points, which may have weighed against your memorialist with
them.

18th. In again looking over the proceedings before the Com-
missioners as published in the daily newspapers (his only source
of information) your memorialist cannot but observe an appa-
rent dissatisfaction of at least one of the Commissioners with
the nature of your memorialist’s answer.

19th. If the report as relating to him was in any degree
affected by such dissatisfaction, your memorialist cannot but
think that the Commissioners must have imbibed some very
considerablé unfavorable impressions against your memorialist
for which he ventures to believe there was no more just founda-
tion than there was for any which might have been excited by Mr.
Law’s accusation of your memorialist, having been in Calcutta
during the whole or any part of the period occupied in the Police
investigations ; and he cannot but think also that if any such
unfavorable impression arose in their minds, the Commissioners
did not give due weight to the state of health in which your
memorialist appeared before them, When in the month of
June, he proceeded under the leave he had obtained to his Son-
in-law’s Factory, your memorialist was in so weak a state as
necessarily to be carried on board the boat in which he pro-
ceeded, and has not even yet in any degree recovered his previous
health. He returned to Calcutta in a very debilitated state of
mind and body from an anxiety to present himself for examina-
tion, and to meet every possible imputation which could be made
upon his character-—when your memorialist appeared before the
Police he was quite unable to sustain, and would not have at-
tempted to sustain, the fatigue, excitement and anxiety which
such an examination was calculated to produce, for any less
object than that for which he returned to Calcutta; but he did
not hesitate at once to offer himself for such examination.

20th. Your memorialist is not aware that he stated any one
thing upon such examination which 18 other than the strict
truth, or other than the fullest which could be given by an
.-honest man desirous of stating all that he knew, and could be
expected to recollect regarding the occurrences on which he
was interrogated. Your memorialist submits that any prejudice
created against &im by want of precision, recollection or firmness
in his replies, is neither just nor considerate as to the circum-
stances and the weak state of health under which his evidence
Was giveil.

2]1st. If the report of the Commissioners was grounded in
any degree on the supposition) that your memorialist was to the
slightest extent under the control or influence of Mutty Loll
Seal or any other uative, or indeed of any other person than his
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official superiors, your memorialist submits that the report 18
most unjust to him and contrary to the evidence given before
the Commissioners—your memorialist was never indebted to
Mutty Loll Seal or to any other native, or under theirinfluence
in any way, your memorialist was security for a Son-in-law to
Mutty Loll Seal for sums raised by the former for his own
purposes ; nor i8 your memorialist aware, that there was any
offence or any impropriety in his becoming such security, and
it was distinctly shewn that the whole of such loan was paid off
by Mr Kenny.

22nd. If the Commissioners’ report was founded in any
idea that your memorialist was employed to raise money for, or
in any way on private affairs of the Chief Magistrate, it was
equally unjust and contrary to any evidence worthy of credit
which was adduced on that point. Mr. Patton was too honor-
able and high-minded a gentleman to have made nse of his
official influence to raise a loan from any one, or to have em-
ployed an official subordinate in such a transaction, it is sufhi-
cient to say that it was denied most emphatically by Mr. Patton,
and needs no repetition of such denial by your memorialist, who
as unhesitatingly gives it—it rests for its foundation on mere
gsurmise or unfounded report, or otherwise upon malicious and
evil intended falsehood and invention. Your memorialist can-
not believe that this could have weighed with or been credited
by the Commissioners, for whilst he is dismissed the Chief
Magistrate (who if ‘$here had been any foundation for the in-
vention would have been the chief delinquent) is continued in
Office.

23rd. °If the Commissioners’ report was in any degree found-
ed upon your memorialist’s connection with, or supposed pro-
tection of Gunga Ram Jemadar, your memorialist conceives, it
is hardly more to be sustained—the real facts of the case are
that Gunga Ram had no more connexion with your memorialist
in any way but official duties, than he had with a perfect
stranger, as to his styling your memorialist his father, (if the
evidence respecting that is to be credited) it is nothing but the.
idle braggadocio or figurative expression, of a native. He is
an up-country native of singular energy, activity, courage and’
intelligence : he was one of the most intelligenty Police Officers
that this country ever produced, and probably equal in those
respects fo most Police Officers, who can be produced in the
London Police, and this only was his recommendation to your
memorialist, to whom he was an utter stranger before his intro-
duction as a recruit in the Police in which he was promoted by
the Superintendent, not by your memorialist, his only fault as
a Police Officer was perhaps an excess of energy; it was this
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which led to a matter about which so much observation was
made, as to his trial and sentence in the Supreme Court. The
indictment upon which he was tried was for an assault, for a
heavy blow which he had struck a native with a ruler, and of
which assault he was convicted, and notwithstanding such
conviction, he was indisputably taken back by the then Super-
intendent of Police, Colonel Steele (with the sanction of the
Chief Magistrate Mr. McFarlane) after suffering the gentence,
under the impression and belief that he was the best Police
Officer amongst the natives that had ever been seen 1n Calcutta.
Under such impression your memorialist admits that Gunga
Ram was, and your memorialist believes justly, a favorite with
vour memorialist who found that there was no one in his
station on whom he could place so much-rehiance for the due
performance of the duties entrusted to him as he could upon
Gunga Ram. |

24th., If the report of the Commissioners depends in any
degree upon the circumstances relating to the sale of the
Putteldangah Thannah, your memorialist submits that they form
no justification of a charge of ¢ extreme Ofhicial Malversation®
or of any Malversation whatever on his part. If your memo-
rialist had sold the Putteldangah Thannah of his own accord
and without the authority of his superior in office, and had
received the money and made personal use of it, there might
have been a foundation for such an imputation: but that he
did so in any respect, he wholly and emphatically denies. It
can hardly be supposed that your memorialist would have been
bold enough to have sold without authority, a property of
Government, whether with or without a motive, or® that any
one would have purchased it on such authority as that of your
memorialist, or would thereon have paid the purchase money.
It would be difficult to shew that your memorialist had any
motive whatever to do so; he had none and your memorialist
is prepared, if allowed, the opportunity to prove that the whole
amount of the purchase money was deposited in, and remained
_.marked as the purchase money of the Putteldangah Thannah
in, the iron chest in the Police Office, from the period that it
was originally brought there from Mutty Loll Seal, to the time
of your memonsialist leaving Caleutta on sick leave, when he
forwarded it to the Chief Magistrate with a letter. At the
time when your memorialist was taken 1il, and at the time when
he was removed from Calcutta, there was no rumour of any
Commmission to enquire into the affairs of the Police, and if
your memorialist had ever removed the money to his private
residence which he distinctly denies, there would have been no
motive for his restoring it to the right place of deposit before
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he left ; it is said that the notes found there did not tally with
the numbers or amounts of the notes received from Baboo Mut-
ty Lall Seal—this is possible, though your memorialist neither
knows the exact numbers or amounts of the separate notes
which were so forwarded to the Chief Magistrate; but he does
know that the exact total amount which was paid in se remain-
ed at all times—neither more nor less—so long as your memori-
alist was in charge of the same; and if any notes were different
from those paid in, they must have been changed for others
collectively of similar value for transactions which were going
on at the Police and for the mere purpose of convenience, which
was occasionally done in case of money merely held in deposit,
and not deposited for proof to be produced in Court; and this
also he does know, that neither directly or indirectly did your
memorialist ever get or expect to get any advantage whatsoever
from the sale of the Putteldangah Thannah, or from the pur-
chase money thereof or the usufruct or possession thereof, no
part of which ever was in his possession otherwise than in such
- iron cheat, Of the bid of Dinnoenauth Sein and all relating, or
subsequent to or consequent on it, your memorialist was in
thorough ignorance ; the whole transaction related to an office
with which he had no official connection,

25th. 1f the report of the Commissioners rests upon the
supposition of your memorialist being concerned in the case of
Bib Chunder Mullick not being brought to trial, and your
memorialist having in any degree connived at it, or assisted in
it, it 1s a complete fallacy, and a moest unjust imputation upon
your memorialist. When the warrant was issued your memo-
rialist pu# it into the hands of Gunga Ram, who as your memo-
rialist has already observed, he considered the most energetic
Native Officer in the Police; your memorialst had no know-
Jedge of Sib Chunder Mullick ; who was a mere boy, nor any
acquaintance with his father, your memorialist could have had
no inducement to streen Sib Chunder Mullick from justice.
If it is supposed that your memorialist was bribed to a neglect
of a duty, such supposition rests upon no sort of foundation,.
it 18 nearly as absurd as it is in every respect and iota false.
Sib Chunder Mullick and his father were not in circumstances
to enable them to offer a very high bribe for 80 gross a derelic-
tion of your memorialist’s duty, and if he were to be swayed
by lucre only, the prosecutors on the other hand were the Bank
of Bengal, who necessarily had many prosecutions of a sumilar
nature, and to whose liberality your memorialist was, on various
occasions, with the full knowledge of the Magistrates and the
Government, greatly indebted, it is hardly to be believed that
your memorialist would abandon his general duty to his
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employers, his more immediate duty on the occasion to liberal
amf generous prosecutors, and subject himself to the danger
and risk of receiving a bribe such as Sib Chunder or his friends
might be likely to offer as an inducement, for his so doing.
Your memorialist asks respectfully whether it is to be borue
that a character for integrity, diligence and assiduity which 40
vears bonest and zealous service has acquired is thus to be
surmised away without proof of any kind or sort. Your
memorialist defies the whole world to prove that or any other
instance of his accepting a bribe for the non-performance of his
duty. If your memorialist received a bribe for preventing Sib
Chunder Mullick’s being arvested, it is not likely to be very
difficult of proof, if it is capable of proof let your memorialist
be indicted and he will thank the Govermment for presenting
such indictment, for he is satisfied it would signally fail, and
your memorialist’s innocence at heart on this charge be tri-
umphant. Your memorialist has lost all the influence which
niay be supposed to be attaching to the Office which he lately
held, no native can longer hope to benefit by saying aught in
his favor; natives are more likely to fear offending the Govern-
ment thereby in their ignorance of European feelings in such
matters. But your memorialist appeals with confidence to the
evidence of both Sib Chunder Mullick and his father to prove
that neither directly nor indirectly, had he any communication
with them upon the subject. With regard to the statement
that your memorialist is supposed to have made to Major Birch
of the delivery of warrant to Lee an Inspector who has died.
Your memorialist is not aware of ever having made such a state-
ment, and as Inspector Lee did not belong to the division in
which Sib Chunder lived, it is most unlikely that your memori-
alist should have made, and he is satisfied that he did not make
auch statement. Major Birch has indisputably formed an
erroneous impression on the subject.

26th. It may not here be improper to introduce with refer-
ence to what your memorialist has said about the liberality
.which he has received frequently from the Bank of Bengal and
a sort of accusation insinuated against bim of his receiving
presents in the Police; one accusation being that an woknown,
at least unnamaed friend, had told one of the witnesses that he,
such friend, had given your memorialist a tin case of Salmou.
Such statement is an utter falsehood, but that your mewmorialist
has received many presents by way of rewards from the Go-
vernment, from the Bank of Bengal, and from the Magistrates
themselves, he by no means denies or attempts to conceal. Pre-
sents by the Magistrates by way of rewards are limited to 100
Rs. unless with the previous sanction of (Government. Your
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memorialist in two or three occasions received and is proud to
have done so, considerable presents in money from the Bank of
Bengal, on another from the same parties a valuable gold watch
—and from the Magistrates since he entered the Police not
less than 2 or 3000 Rs. presents as rewards, as above-—but he
denies and defies the whole world to prove that he ever took a
secret or any present from any individual whatever unknown to
the Magistrates. Although there was and is no order against
the receipt of presents for services by any Officer of the Police.
But your memorialist defies all Calcutta to prove that he ever
received one otherwise than as above received.

27th.  If the report of the Commissioners rests in any degree
upon the circumstance of your memorialist having allowed two
Watches and Trichinopili Chains to be delivered out of the
Iron Chest for the purposes of Police duty, vour memorialist
cannot deny and never has denied that he did so, but under
circumstances that will not warrant a charge against him
of “KExtreme Official Malversation.”” The Watches were un-
claimed, deceased Sailors’ Watches with pieces of Trichinopili
Chain of the commonest description, the value of each of them
including the Chain was perhaps 20 Rs.—the object with which
your memmorialist allowed them to be given out was no per-
sonal gain, advantage, or convenience to himself ; they were
given for the purpose of the Inspectors on duty (who had no
Watches of their own) marking the time on their patrols more
correctly, they having been accused of neglecting this ; no more
legitimate mode (if any could be s0) of making use of these
Watches and no more innocent one, as far as your memorialist
was concérned in the transaction, could he submits be imagined:
—when they were delivered out, a voucher for them was de-
posited in the Iron Chest, to mark when, and to whom the
articles had been delivered. Your memorialist therefore could
have no intention of concealment or of fraud, any more than of
galn or advantage; it was observed by one of the Commission-
ers that Chains were not necessary to mark the time, undoubt-
edly not! but when the value of the Chain is considered, that .
the Watch and the Chain were the only articles belonging to
the parties respectively, and when the necessity for some Chain
or a substitute for it was obvious it would hardly seem worth
while to separate one from the other—perhaps it would have
been well to do so, perhaps it was not in strictness, right to de-
liver out the Watches at all—your memorialist does not defend
his having done so, but if he erred it was from an error in judge-
ment and want of due consideration, and cannot, as your me-
morialist subinits, come under the category of * Extreme Offi-
cial Malversation.”
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28th. Of the charge of not duly accounting for the Bank
notes and other property which came into your memorialist’s
possession, he believes he fully disposed before the Commis-
sioners. The fortunate preservation of the indemnity of Messrs.
Carr, Tagore and Co. for the only note not acecounted for,
though the interval of nearly 11 years had elapsed, enabled him
to dispose fully of the Bank notes. The other accusations
against vour memorialist contained in the evidence he is satisfied
are of too trivial a nature, and too ill supported by any credible
witnesses to have formed a foundation of a report so severe
against your memorialist, as that of the Commissioners is repre-
sented to be in the letter of the Secretary to Government
consequent upon which your memorialist has been dismissed
from a service of which he has long been an humble in-
dividual.

20th. Your memorialist has thus endeavoured to take a
cursory review of the principal points which may have formed
the grounds upon which the Comnissioners framed their report,
but if he 18 in error as to the grounds of it, or if correct, and
upon any of the points he has failed to satisfy your Lordship
that he 1s undeserving of the terms which have been applied to
him, he entreats and implores your Lordship by that considera-
tion which your Lordship would give to the value which every
honest man must attach, to an hitherto unimpeached character of
40 years standing, and by your Lordship’s love of and regard
for justice, by the feeling which your Lordship cannot but en-
tertain of the natural right which every British subject has to
receive a fair and full hearing, and to know distinctly the of-
fences with which he is charged before he is punishtd in any
way, or deprived of rights which he has earned by a longhcourse
of servitude, to let your memorialist know precisely with what
he 1s charged with having committed, that he may have the
opportunity of clearing himself, as he doubts not that he can
do, from every charge in any way impeaching his honest per-
formance of his duties, or such as would subject bim with jus-
_-tice to the forfeiture of the earnings of a life. From the time
that your memorialist first served the Government in India, he
never was absent on leave or otherwise from his duty until the
latter end of 1848, when he was compelled by severe indisposi-
tion to go on the river and seek change of air. The subsequent
proceedings which have led to the dismissal of your memorialist
from his situation, to the injury of his character, to the ruin of
his prospects, and have marred the happiness of his family,—
have hitherto prevented the recovery of his health—and unless
he can be in some degree restored to that respectability of
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ia little chance of his recovery-——and this he is prepared to
show by the certificate of his medical attendant.

30th. Your memorialist does not pretend to be absolutely
devoid of property, but whatever he has acquired was obtained
by his own industry and hard and unceasing toil, and he trusts
that it is not to his discredit, that by constant industry and
application to his duties and by great economy and frugality he
has been enabled to maintain himself and to bring up a large
family in respectability, and while so doing to have saved some-
thing in a period of about 31 years, in addition to the money
which your memorialist had to some amount when he joined
the Police. He defies any one to prove, and he believes few
who have been in Calcutta during that period will say that he
ever obtained any part of that property which he possesses by
other than fair, legitimate, and lawful means, and by hard and
incessant toil.—From the date of his appointment in the Police
in 1818 to the hour of his removal from it, no person ever
complained against your memorialist, either to a Magistrate, or
to the Supreme Court, although, from the nature of his em-
pluoyment as a Police Officer, it is naturally to be supposed that
he must have excited the animosity of many among the num-
ber of those whom he brought to justice. If itis suppoesed
that your mmemorialist had any secret or other influence in the
Police to prevent complaints or infermations against him reach-
ing the Magistrates (which he positively denies that he had)
no influence could have been exercised to prevent complaints,
either through the medium of Attorneys or otherwise reaching
the Judges of the Supreme Court. The absence of all com-
plaints during the whole period of his service in the Police, is,
a8 yodr memorialist respectfully submits, the best proof of the
absence of any real cause for it,—If the period had been short,
the influence of course would have been weaker—but it is im-
possibie to conceive that if in 31 years the conduct of your
memorialist had really beenflagitious, some accusation at least
would not have ascended to the Magistrates or the Supreme
Court—with due submission and respect, he cannot but feel,..
that his length of service, his character during that time (before
the Police investigations unimpeached) the total absence during
that lengthened period of any species of complant against him,
entitle your memorialist to some more tangible and specific
charge which he might be enabled to meet, than the vague state-
ment of ¢ the report exhibiting cases® against your memorialist
of ¢ Kxtreme Official malversation,’” before he ought to be de-
prived eithes of his character or pis pension.

3ist. The assumption that your memorialist had given every
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would respectfully urge, with the circumstances under which
he was examined and delivered his statement., That statement
as above mentioned was prepared at the Factory of his Son-in-
law, and not with any reference to any supposed cases brought
forward against him, but as mere observations on the evidence
as given by the witnesses. Your memorialist to this moment is
not aware what facts or circumstances the Commissioners con-
sidered as in any degree standing upon credible evidence and
what they disbelieve. Your memorialist though anxious that
nothing should be published to the world, which should be cal-
culated to reflect upon his character never considered that he
was an object of any accusation or charge whatever. The
utmost which he can consider, the Commission was a Court of
Yinquiry to inform the Government whether there were grounds
for charges against any of the parties connected with it, but
your memorialist never dreamt that any sentence would be
passed upon the enquiries of such Committee without charges
being brought against any person pointed out by the report
as_being fit subjects for charges to be preferred against them ;
and the parties who would then be informed of the nature of
the Oifences imputed to them would have every opportunity
of refuting them, if they should be sufficiently established to
call upon them for their defence; and if it be required that
your memorialist should demand such formal trial and proof
against him, he hereby solicits that he may have that, contend-
ing, that he is fully prepared to meet and to negative every
charge which may be urged against his honesty and integrity,
and every impatation upon the fidelity with which he at all
times performed the duties entrusted to him as an Qfficer of
the Police from the day of his entering it, to the hourof his
dismissal. , -
d2nd. Your memorialist then in conclusion most humbly
but anxiously and earnestly prays your Lordship for justice.
He appeals to your Lordship as a British nobleman of honor .
and celebrity, wielding the destinies of this great country to
~protect and befriend a very humble individual, moving in a
much lower sphere than that which your Lordship graces and
dignifies, but in which lower sphere, your memoralist makes
bold to say, heefulfilled with as much honesty of purpose and
mtegrity of conduct, and with as safe a conscience for a period
of 40 years, the various duties attached to the different situations
which he occupied, during that time ; as any of their duties have
been performed by those in loftier grades who surround your
Lordship. At his advancing _,age and in his infirm state of
health, he asks not for restoration to that situation from which
he has been removed, or appointment to any other situation
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under the Government of the Honorable Company whom he
has so long served (he asserts) with honor and integrity as
well as zeal : but he appeals to your Lordship’s sense of justice
to restore your memorialist to that position to which he feels
himself entitled, and to grant to him that pension which his
long and faithful services have earned for him according to the
rules of the Honorable Company, expressing his utmost readi-
ness to meet, if your Lordship shall so direct, any charges which
may be distinctly preferred-against him.
And your memorialist will ever pray.

250th February, 1819.
My pEar WILKINSON, .

The bearer is Serjeant Major McCann of the Town Guard,—
whom I recommend to your kindness. 1 doubt mnot you will
find him as I and every other Officer under whom he has served
—a, steady, trust-worthy excellent man, and in every respect
worthy of his post.

Yours ever,
(Signed) H. S. MonTaGU.
Captain WILKINSON,

I with pleasure agree with my friend Captain Montagu in
the character he has given Serjeant Major McCann in every
respect, he is most deserving of every kindness that can be
gshewn him. :

- (Signed) H, W. WiLKINSON,

_ Fort Adjulant.
Fort William, November 13th, 1823.

My DEAR SIR,

The bearer of this is Serjeant Major McCann of the Town,
Guards, who 1 beg to recommend to your particular notice.

You will find him a man in every way deserving your utmost
confidence; 1 am induced to speak thus highly of him, from
the opportunity I have had of judging of his worth, as well as
from the very handsome testimony borne to his character by
two of my predecessors in Office.

(Signed)  J. HEPwoORTH.
. 4th April, 1826.
To Captain SHORTLAND,
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No. 2.

To J. B. Birch, C. Trower and C. Rosison, Esgs.
Magistrates of Police.
(GENTLEMEN,

Having submitted to the Right Honorable the Governor, the
communication contained in your letter to my address of the
9924 ultimo, I am commanded to request you will convey to
Serjeant Major McCann and the Town Serjeants employed
on the occasion referred to, His Lordship’s unqualified approba-
tion of their conduct, thereby verifying the good opinion His
Lordship entertained of them when he sanctioned their nomi-
nation to Town Serjeantcies, and which conduct had it been less
firm or temperate, might have been productive of much blood-
ghed.

I am further desired to acquaint you that the Officer com-
manding the Calcutta Native Militia will be directed to convey
to that portion of his Regiment which acted under the Town
Serjeants, His Lordship’s approval of their steady and meritori-
ous couduct on this occasion.

I am, &c. &ec.,
(Signed) J. VAuGHAN, Lieut-Col.

Town Major.
Fort William, 2d January, 1828.

No, 6264.

To Mr. McCann.

Police Office.
SR,

The Directors of the Bank desire me to send you the
-enclosed Bank Note for 500 Rupees, as some token of their
sense of your zealous exertions in the apprehension and con-

viction of several individuals prosecuted for forgeries on the
Bank of Bengal.

I have much pleasure in carrying the Directors’ instructions
into effect.

I have the honor, &c. &c.,
(Signed) G. Ubpny,
Secretary andel'reasurer to the Bank of Bengal.

Bank of Bengal, 218t December, 1833,
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No. 888 of *40.

Mr. J. J. McCann,

Deputy Superintendent of Police.
SIR,

I have much pleasure in handing to you the accompanying
gold Watch, which the Directors of the Bank of Bengal have
desired me to request your acceptance of, as a token of their
gense of your services in discovering several gangs of forgers ;

}nm;}; of whom were convicted and sentenced to transportation
or iiIc.

I am, Sir,
Your most Obedient Servant,
(Signed) T. BRACKEN,
‘ Secretary to the Bank.

Bank of Bengal, 5th December, 1840,

| Calcuita, 19th August, 1842,
My pEAR Sir,

Your character in the entire execution of the duties of your
arduous and responsible Office can receive no accession from
my testimony, but I cannot retire from my Office of Coroner
after so long experience of your services without tendering you

my warzést thanks for the attention you have ever paid to my
wishes#vhich never could have been s0 fully met, were not your

inclination seconded by your ability, zeal, and energy.

~ I shall be at all times happy to hear of your continued and
increasing welfare, and am,

Very sincerely yours,

C. B. GReeNLAW,
o Mr. McCanNn.

7th January, 1842,
My DEAR SIR,

In leaving the Office of Chief Magistrate of Calcutta, I
have great pleasure in referring to my letter to Government of
Febrnary 1840, applying for an increase to your allowances. I
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have seen reason to hold the same opinion of you since the
date of that letter, and if possible to have it increased.

You are unquestionably the most able and efficient Officer in
your particular line that the Government have.

I wish you long life in health and usefulness.

Yours truly,
(Signed) D. McFarLANE.

Jo Mr. J. J. McCann.
Calcuita Police.

Extract from a letter from the Chief Magistrate of Calcutta to
the Secretary to the Government of Bengal Judicial Depart-
ment, dated 3rd February 1840, No. 64.

Para., 2nd. Mr. McCann was formally recognized by the
Government as deputy Superintendent of Police in Mr. Thoma-
son’s letter of 29th March 1831, No 561, and for the last nine
years he has performed fully and completely the whole duty of
that Office. If any success has attended the change of system
introduced in 1830, much of it is due to the skill and courage,
the caution and unwearying perseverance evinced by Mr.
McCann.
~ Para, 3rd. At the time I wrote my letter of 19th March
1831, the duty proposed for Mr. McCann was verysubordi-
nate, and the pay allowed to him was only Rupees 268, subse-
quently in 1833, his allowance was increased to Sicca Rupees
300, since that period his duty and usefulness have very much
increased. He gives assistance to the Superintendent of Po-
lice in the duty of watch and ward, in telling off and allotting
rounds and occasional visits, he is Captain of the whole Town
Guards, a body of 5 Europeans and 129 Natives. He is invalu-
able as keeping the Superintendent and myself apprized of
failures in the conduct of the European Force, and thus effectu-
ally repressing” the vices of intemperance and violence very
often found in that class, his character is such among men of
his own sphere, that they know faults cannot escape him and
will not be screened to the injury of the public or the scandal
of the class they belong to. He renders useful aid to the Ma-
gistrates in discerning the weight due to evidence, or giving the
character of persons accused, he is the able assistant of the Su-
perintendent in ferreting out crimes and their perpetrators, and
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the Judges of the Supreme Court will testify how useful he is as
the Agent of the Police in that Court. He attends the whole.
of every Sessions to produce witnesses and stolen property,
and to give the character of persons convicted, and last of all
he makes out and submits to the Superintendent, and to me the
rewards merited by persons who have rendered service to the
Police. To these multifarious calls upon him, all honestly
performed, he adds a diligence that never slumbers, he is never
absent from his post and never unfit to fulfil its duty to the
utmost. The kindliness and amenity of his manner is such
that no one ever had to do with him who would not gladly
agsist him to the utmost in the discharge of his duty.

(Signed) D. McFarLaNE,
Chief Magistrate.

No. 633.

To D. McF¥arLaNE, Esq.
Chief Magistrate of Calcutia.

Sir,—In reply to your letter No. 64 of the 3rd. February
last, the Right Honorable the Governor of Bengal has directed
me to transmis to you, copy of aletter* from the Secretary to
the Govginment of India, conveying the sanction of the Right
Honoraole the Governor General to the transfer of Mr. Con-
ductor McCann from the Military to the Civil Department on
a consghdated allowance of Rupees 400 per mensum, as Depu-
ty Superintendent of Police, -

The Civil Auditor and the Military Secretary have been in-
formed of his Lordship’s sanction to the measure.

I am, &c,
(Signed) F. J. HaLLipaY,
Secretary lo the Govt, of Bengal,

Fort William, 14tk April 1840.

* No. 57, 36th Ultimo,
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No. b57.

To F. J. HaLLiDAY, Esq.
Secretary to the Government of Bengal.

S1r,—I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your let-
ter No. 438 dated the 17 instant, with its enclosures, and in re-
ply, to state, the Governor General of India in Council is pleased
to sanction the proposal of the Right Honorable the Governor
of Bengal that Mr. McCann should be altogether transferred
to the civil branch of the state with the usual claim to pension
(dating his services in the Police from the year 1818) upon a
fixed remuneration of Rs. 400 per mensem as Deputy Super-
intendent of Police.

2nd. The original enclosures of your letfer under acknow-
ledgment are returned herewith. -

I have, &c. &ec.

(Signed) T. H. MappoOcCEK,
Secretary to the Government of India.

Council Chamber, the 30th March, 1840.

T have known Mr. James McCann ever since I have been a
judge of this court, I have the highest opinion of his character,
I believe him to be a man of strict integrity, and 1 know that
he has discharged the duties of a Police Officer with great skill
and intelligence, indeed I do not know how his place“gould be
adequately supplied, if he left the Office he now holds. The
opinions I express are, I know entertained by all persons in this
place who have any thing to do with the administration of
criminal justice.

| (Signed) Epwarp Ryan.
January 8th, 1842.

DeARrR SIR,

In reply to your note just received, requsting my sentiments
as to the manner you have discharged your duties under me as
Deputy Superintendent of Police. 1 have the highest opinion
of your abilities and have ore more than one occasion recorded
my opinion of your zeal and exertions.
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I have no doubt that your very great experience would be
found of great advantage in the discharge of the duties of
Superintendent of Police, and think your abilities and other
qualifications entitle you to the favorable consideration of Go-
vernment. -
Yours truly,

(Signed) F. W, Bircm.
10th September, 1845.

To J. J. McCann, Esg.
Officiating Superintendent of Police.

DEAR SIr,

In reply to your letter of this date, soliciting my testimony
as to your discharge of the various duties of the employments
you have held in the Calcutta Police, and have much pleasure
in saying that since I have held the Office of Coroner of Cal-
cutta {August 1843) I have uniformly found that your zeal,
activity, and attention to all the duties of your Office within
any cognizance cannot be exceeded, that you have been most
ready to attend to all my suggestions for tracing out crime, or
supposed crime which have been from my knowledge of native
habits frequent and perhaps singular at times, and that I have
always found your ready aid in forwarding witnesses to my
court, and in so arranging that in my often painful duties, the
least possible inconvenience has been inflicted on the numerous
poor p?una who were necessarily summoned for the full sa-
tisfactibn of my juries and myself, and thus lightening to them
as much as possible, one of the severest burdens, which all the
Indian Courts (even more than those of other Countries) must
lay upon the community.

(Signed) H. Pippinaron, Coroner.
Calcutta, 29th April, 1849.

True Copies.

J. J. McCann.
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APPENDIX B.

EXTRACTS.

This report has been delayed for the last 2 or 3 weeks in
order that we wmight include in it an examination of Mr.
McCann, the Deputy Superintendent of Police, statements so
sertously affecting whom had been made by many of the parties
who had previously appeared before us. Mr. McCann returned
recently from the interior, to which he had proceeded on the
leave of absence granted to him by Government, and was ex-
amined by us on the 3d instant. He gave in at the same time
a written paper,* which had been prepared by him after the
perusal of the reports of all our former public proceedings.

Mr. McCann the Deputy Superintendent of Police was under
legal obligation to Baboo Mutty Loll Seal fru§1 having 1I:unevz’:untnme:

. i .. security to him in the year
ietg”;mg agéciésﬁ:: ftr}]fn Fﬁi{‘llﬁlr:;g: 1843 and 1844 for two dif‘fe{ent
1sq., Prothonotary thereto appended. advances of 30}000 RHPEES and
10,000 Rupees made to Mr. Kenny, an Indigo Planter, Mr.
McCann’s son-in-law, who had been introducedt by Mr.
MecCann to the Baboo for the purpose of obtaining the loan.
For the larger of these advances Mr. McCann had mortgaged
Ilouse property in Calcutta, which he had 4 or 5 years pre-
viously purchased from Mutty Loll Seal for the sum of 28,000
Rupees. Judgment was confessed upon both of these loans
on the 20th of November 1847, and satisfaction entered on
the record respecting both on the 6th June 1849; joint accep-
tances having been given by Mr. Kenny and Mr,*McCann
for the balance then still remaining unpaid of 13,000 Rupees,
to be paid in two sums of 6 and 7,000 Rupees, one after 3 and
the other after 4 months. Mr. Kenny in a letter] to our
address of the 9th ultimo, with account appended, has stated
his view of these transactions, with details of the payments
made by him till the balance was brought down to 13,000
“Rupees.” Mr. McCaun had the further§ pecuniary dealing with
Mutty Loll Seal by the purchase of House property in Cossi-
tollah for 28,000 Rupees, as above referred to. The exact date
of this purchase lLias not been given to us, but it was mentioned
by Mutty Loll Seal as having been 8 or 9 and by Mr. McCann
as having been 7 or 8 years ago. Payment was made in part,
by instalments which extended, however, only two years.

It has appeared during our inquiries|| that at some period
after the mention tn the pub}ic prints of the debts owing by

* Enclosure No. 2. + 11th day, pagc 277. T Enclosure No, 4,

iy ™ | U I T ) ] nmH Mawvbkly e Y . I LI Sy
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the Magistrates to Mutty Loll Seal, Mr. Kenny was intro-
duced by Mr. McCann to Mr. Patton, and then made a pro-
posal for endeavouring to procure loans from other parties out
of Calcutta, to enable Mr. Patton to clear himself with Mutty
Loll Seal. Extract from a note from Mr. Patton on the subject,

* T have not the shghtest ohjection to under date the 28th ultimo is
tell gnu.lhat a.prﬂnusitmrl of the kimd  transeribed in the margin,*
mentioned by Mr. Dualy was made to me .
by Mr. Keany, Mr. McCann’s son-in- and further statements by him
aw. and Mr. MecCann in regard
to it are recorded® in the eleventh day’s proceedings. Mr.
McCann’s tone on this transaction has certainly been disin-
genuous, both 1n his oral statements to us, and in the written
paper; in which he has said that he never had any communica-
tion with Mr. Patton on bis pecuniary affairs directly or
indirectly. Mr. Patton has frankly and honorably said, that,
as he had no previous acquaintance with Mr. Kenny, and as
Mr. Kenny was introduced to him by Mr. McCann, he under-
stood that the introduction was made in order that Mr. Kenny
might propose the offer which he did. Mr. Kenny could only
have been led to interest himself in Mr. Patton’s affairs from
motives of some kind connected with his Father-in-law, Mu.
McCann; and taking the offer even in the most favorable
light, as a bona fide overture for being instrumental in raising
funds from third parties upon securities to be received from
Mr. Patton, it was one in which Mr. McCann, in his position,
ought to have taken no part, for the same reasons as those
which guided Mr. Patton when he very properly rejected it.,

A statement made to us by a highly respectable witness,
Mr. Jobgt King, formerly Keeper of the Great Jail, and now
Chief Llerk of the Court of Requests, and the mention of
Baboo Mutty Loll Seal of Mr. McCann having paid him 28,000
Rupees for House property in Calcutta, purchased about 8 or 9
years ago, joined with our having heard from frequent reports

* Fleventh day, pages 274-75.

It was to the effect that he, Mr. Kenny, would use his endeavours to procure me
a sum of money from parties out of Calcutta to enable me to pay off my debt to .
Mutty Loll Seal in consequence of the clamour raised by the Newspapers of the
debts of the Magistrates, and the undue influence said to be exercised over them
in consequence of those debts. Whilst conversing upon the subject our interview
was interrupted by the call of a party desirous of seeing me ®n Official business,
and Mr. Kenny retired. He came the following day and renewed the subject ; but
as I had viewed the offer in all its bearings and seen the objections to which it was
open, 1 decided upon rejecting it, though at the same time I thanked Mr. Kenny
for his good intentions towards me. Mr. McCann was not present on either of
these occasions, though I have no doubt cognizant of the object of his Son-in-Law’s

visit gince he introduced Mr. Kenny to me. Mr, Harwoodf I believe was present
on the last occasion.

1 Mr, Patton’s Head Clerk,  See Mr, Daly’s statement, Tenth day, pages 161-62,
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that Mre. McCann had lost a large sum of money

to his credit

in the books of a mercantile firm which failed in 1833, led
us to seek further information on the subject of Mr, McCann’s
pecuniary means, a8 far as these could be known from open

and general enquiry.

Mema.

Mr. MeCann’s name 1s down in the ofheial

Assirnee’s books as a creditor on the estate of

Melntosh and Co. for 60,000 Rupees.

Mr. MeCann has also four houses which ‘jF]E]d
a monthly rent of 520 Rs, Independently of this
he may have other funds in Company’s paper,
and in the Banks, but such information can only
- be obtained by an officiul application from the

Commisstoners.
{ Signed ) W. T, Law,
20th July, _
Statement af Mr, J. J. McCann'’s employment in
the Caleutta Police agreeably to the Records of
this Office.

1818-19,—Order 17 Nov, 1821. Cal-
cuita Town Guard Serjeant Major
from Oct. 1819. TFirst only 10 Ru-
pees increased per order, dated 17

Nov. 1821 ,cves v euns ceneease 20 0 O
Inspector of Gunpowder (;rudﬂwn, e 2000
40 0 O

Military pay and allowances of Serjeant
Major 1n addition to the Town Guard
allowance. Estimated by the ma-
glﬁtfﬂtﬂﬂﬂ-tiiltltill asmvans 52 U D
Order 3d May, 1831. Mr. McCann 5
allowances increased 100 to 200 per
month,
Previovs allowances,
Town Serjeant, vess corr cunavas 20

Constable, o, cveviavran evsviaas 60
Inspector of Godown, cesesvnses 20
——— Increased
100 10 0 O

Extra allowance as keeper of correspondence,
Order 17th Sept. 1833. Mr.
MeCann authorized to
draw as follows from 1st

Augt, 1833, viz. Moliary

pay und batta, ........ 2 5H 0
As Town Serjeant Major, 20 0 0
Pay as Constable,...... v 60 0 0O

" Personal allowance,...... 151 15 7300 0 0O

25th May 1827. Inspector of Gunpows-

der Godown per order.
22d Cet. 1833, dated” 25 May 1827, at

20 Rupees increased per order 17th

Sept. 1833 from 1st Augt, 1834.

Restored to him by the Chief Magis-

trate under date 22d Oect. 1838,.... 30 0 0
14th Aprit 1840 as Dep, Supt, of Cal-

cuita Police per order dated 14th

A I‘ll 184'[} ------ TYEEE 4[}{] 0 {}
Gthy Nnv 1845. Supt. of Lalcuttﬂ Splt ®

Chokies per order dated Gth Nov.

We insert in the margin a memorandum

furnished to us in re-
ply by the present Su-
perintendent of Police,
to which is subjoined a
return from the Civil
Auditor’s office of the
allowances drawn by Mr.
McCann since his first
employment in the Police.
Mr. McCann was re-
quested to make any
explanatory  statement
which he might wish on
the facts thus ascertained
when he appeared before
us, and his remarks are
recorded in the 11th day,
pages 271 to 274, two or
three first pages of our
eleventh day’s proceed-
ings., It will be seen that
he promised to inform us
as to the year in which,
as he mentioneds he com-
menced his accourt with
Mackintosh and Co., by
paying over to them the
accumulation in his own
hands and in those of his
former agents, Joseph
Taylor and Co. of his
former savings from the
time that he held an
appointment in (we be-
lieve) the Commissariat
Department of the army,
as well as to state to us
the exact sum so made
over to them. We have
not however again heard
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18th Oct, 1848. As Offg, Supt. of Cal- and have not thought it
cutta Foice per ordaer date t .
Oct. 1848, from 12th Oect. to 20th within our duty to press
May 1349’"““5?.”&3“”6.1:# éﬂ'ﬂ 0 ¢ him more clﬂgely regﬂrd-
gne - YW, BaTTYL, ] . » _
( Offe. Civil Auditor. ing it. We are } aware
Fort William, that Mr. McCann’s per-

Civil Auditor’s Office, 21st August, 1849, gsonal habits have always

been those of great economy, but it is still our strong
impression, on the facts of the case as they stand acknow-
ledged, that his transactions have for a long period been
on a scale which could not have been supported from the
regular emoluments of his office. We are bound to make
this general remark,* because it will appear from a subsequent
part of this report that from the manner in which Mr. MeCann
conducted the business connected with the property of all
kinds which came into his charge in the Police, he kept him-
self quite free from check as to his disposal of it, excepting
to some extent, where persons might come forward who could
urge, and bad the means of urging with effect, well founded
claims to it, and hence it might be almost impossible to fix
upon him a distinet responsibility as to particular instances
in which enquiry might be made on any suspicion of mis-
appropriation, especially in regard to articles or money which
as being unclaimed property, onght to have been carried to the
public credit.

18th. It has not appeared to us that Mr. McCann was
habitually subject to influence on the part of Mutty Loll Seal,
or of any other resident of the Town. On the contrary Mr.
McCann’s favorite Police Officer was the Inspector Gunga Ram,
before spbken of, whom Mutty Loll Seal was exceedingly anx-
10ug, hut failed in his endeavours, to remove from employment.
There are, however, some particular instances in which we are
satisfied that Mr. McCann is to be justly charged with undue
favour, or connivance, towards Mutty Loll Seal.

19th. The first of these instances regards the sale of the
Putteldangah Thannah ground, which was referred to us for
report by your letter No., 1183 of the 31st July. _

We were informedt by a respectable party, Baboo Chunder
Mohun Chatterjea that he knew that Baboo Deenonath Sein
had petitioned the Chief Magistrate, offering shim Rs. 2,500
for this ground, which was sold to Mutty Loll ‘Seal for Rs.

* We should add as to the large amount of about 60,000 Rupees to Mr.
McCann’s credit in the books of Mackintosh and Co. that Mr. McCann has
informed us (Eleventh day, page 273) that about 8 or 9000 Rupees of this amount
was the property of two estates of which he was Executor, but he had to make
good about 2 or 3000 Rupees of this Sum ® the parties ioterested, on a compro-
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1350, and we subsequently received a written statement¥® to the
same effect from Deenonath Sein himself, who added that this
offer was returned with a ¢ writing across to the effect that the
Thannahs were not then to be sold, but that when they were,
public notice would be given.” Deenonath Sein in his examina-
tion before us, has said thatt he sent his petition, and received
this reply, in the month of October, 1845. My, Patton has
explained that Tenders for the purchase of the old Police
Thannahs were originally invited} by a general advertisement
of October 2nd, 1845, and that a report§ on the matter having
been subsequently submitted to Government, it was the practice
of his Office to endorse on applications for purchase an order to
the following effect. ¢ Sale of Thannahs not yet sanctioned
by Government. When the necessary order is received, a notifi-
cation inviting fresh tenders will be inserted in the public News-
papers for general information.”” It is not improbable there-
fore, Mr. Patton adds, that among others, applications for the
Putteldangah ground, 1t any, were disposed of in a similar
manner, as the circumstance of its sale, as has already been
shown, was unknown in my Office.” Mr. Patton remarked,
as to the authority for the sale of the ground: ¢“I gave my
assent, at least am said to have done so in a letter from Mr.
McCann, dated 9th June last, though I aver I have no recol-
tection of the transaction, and must have acted most inadvert-
ently, had I given my consgnt.” Mr. Patton at the same time
denied (as he had done in his second letter to you on the sub-
ject, of the 26th July last, paragraph 4) that any report of the
actual completion of the sale, or payment of the money, had
been made to him, till the month of June of the prefent year.
His letter of the 26th July observes on this point that, had he
known of the sale having been concluded, * he should immedi-
ately, and without the smallest hesitation, have brought the mat-
ter to the notice of Government. In fact, he could not under any
circumstances, have followed any other course.”” Mr. McCann
did not say in his letter to Mr. Patton of the 9th June last,
that he had reported to that Officer the actual receipt of the
money, but before us hej| said, * that he must have done so,
but recollected no particulars of .having done it.”” Mr. Patton
has given in tavus some correspondence with the Collector of
Calcutta, with a view to shew that the price Rs. 1350, received
from Mutty Loll Seal for the ground in question, 2 Cottahs B
chittacks in extent, is even above a fair valuation of it, and that

* E{mrth day, 88 C. and 88 L), § Fourth day, pages 74 to 79.

THEER .l TS N REE—— ) ] 11
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therefore, the statement* of Deenonath Sein that 2500 Rupees
““ was a price which any one would have paid for it,”” must be
incorrect ; on this, however, we think it sufficient to remark that
Deenonath Sein has mentionedt circumstances which rendered
the ground of particular value to him, and that we see no rea-
son whatever, to doubt that he did make the offer at the time,
and to the amount professed by him. It does not, of course
follow that, as the Offices of the Chief Magistrate and of the
Superintendent of Police, were treated as quite distinet from
each other, Mr. McCanu was aware of the offer having been
made, nor should we lay much stress on Mr. Patton having
forgotten such a circumstance as Mr. McCann’s having spoken
to him about a mere authority to accept the offer, for the mode
of carrying on business, has been far from striet, and Mr.
Patton’s] memory on such points of Official detail has been
seen by us, In the course of our enquiries, to be by no means
ready or certain. There was great irregularity in an acceptance
of the offer, when no sanction had been received from Govern-
ment for the sale of any of the old Thannabs, and before the
1ssue of the further and duly authorized invitation for tenders
which was intended. Mr. McCann may however, be no further
answerable for this than on account of his having urged the
receipt of the offer under such circumstances, and obtained
Mr. Patton’s sanction to it in a mere conversation, when there
could remain no certain means of knowing what actually pass-
ed, and there could be no security to superior authority that
the matter was submitted so as to receive proper care and
attention. But there are particulars connected with the actual
receipt of* the money, which force us to the conclusion that
either Jt was not taken from Mutty Loll Seal at the time
that he was allowed to occupy the Thannah ground, or that, at
all events, 1t was not at that time paid into any Department of
the Police, or duly kept there on the Government account.
It is in the first place, independently of the great improbability
that the money would be kept for so long a term as 3 years,
on a mere supposition that authority would come from Govern-
ment at some time or other for the sale of other Thannahs,
a suspicious circumstance that Mutty Loll Seal got possession
of the ground without an instrument of conweyance of any
kind,§ which, had the transaction been perfectly regular he
would scarcely have neglected to require, and that, though
much pressed by us to produce it, he has always stated|| his

* Fourth day, page 40,
+ As above.
I See Mutty Loll Seal’s account of the trdhsaction. Fifth day, page 121,

§ Fifth day, page 121.
It Kyoehth davy rincar 217 and 218
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inability to find the receipt given to him for the price, and his
not bearing in recollection whether the receipt was signed
by Mr. Patton (the only competent person) or by Mr. McCann.
Mr. Mc¢Cann has said* in reply to our enquiries about the
receipt, ‘‘ that he must have signed 1t, but that he really had
no recollection,”” and when asked how a receipt from him could
have been taken as valid as he had no Treasury, and was with-
cut authority in such matters, he replied that Mr. Hughes
(Mutty Loll Seal’s agent, who with a Sircar brought him the
notes) must have accepted his receipt. He (Mr. Hughes)
““would not have aliowed the money to stay with him without
one.”” This 18 an explanation which i8 obviously insufficient,
and it is to be remarked on it, in passing, that it much sup-
ports the impression that, supposing even some cursory men-
tion of the proposed sale to have been made to Mr. Patton,
he was yet not duly informed of the whole proceeding, since

had he been so, his authoritative receipt would naturally have
been insisted upon by the other party, and obtained by Mr,
McCaun for his own security. It is however allegedt by Mr,
McCann that the Bank notes were brought to him in Janunary
or February 1846 by Mr. Hughes end o Sircar, and Mutty
Loll Seal has shown us,] his private account books, in which
Bank notes to the value of Rs. 1350 are entered as having
been paid on the 22nd Januvary 1846 ¢ for the purchase of
Putteldangah Thannah site paid to Mr. Hughes and Kallee
Dass Chatterjea.”” 'The transactions of the professed delivery
of the notes by Mutty Loll Seal and their receipt by Mr.
McCann are therefore brought to approximate as nearly as
to time and to the parties conveying the money, as 18 possible
in the absence of any exact record of dates and names. +When
we come however to compared the numbers and amounts of

* Eleventh day, page 294. 1 Eleventh day, pages 293-4.
1 Fifth day, page 121. Eighth day, page 218,

§ Extract from Baboo Mutty Loll Seal’s
Cash Book.
22nd January 1846. For the purchase
" of the Putteidangah Thannal site paid
to Mr. Huglies and Kallee Dass Chat-
terjea.
In Bank of Bengad notes
No. 514 for Rs, 250, ..
Nos. 28163, 10004,13179,
41477, 6907, 2953,2808,
961 ; Eight notes for 100

250 0 O

Rs, ﬁanh, secrrevesnes S00 O O

Twelve notes for 25 Ras.
eacl]"l-ll Ed BR¥® gk a % &A@ 3{]‘] ﬂ'ﬂ
Co.’s Re... 13530 0 0

Memorandum from Mr. Patton’s Office.

Memo. of the numbers and. amounts
of Bank of Bengal notes paid into the
Police Treasury by Mr. McCann on
account of the sule proceeds of the old
Putteldangab Thannah,

Nos. 6857, 16438, 16623,
95,16463, for250 Rupees

each,.. oo vvievnnas. 1250 G 0O
No. 20743, covveveeesae 100 0 O
Co.’s Rs... 1350 0 0
(Signed) W, 8. Harwoob,
Head Clerk,

Caleutia Police, 448 Sept, 1849
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the notes as shewn by Mutty Loll Seal’s account book, and by
the list of notes paid in on June of this year by Mr. McCann
to Mr. Patton’s office, we find that there is not a coincidence
as to any one of the notes, although two are for the same
amount (that is, in one instance, Rs. 250 and in the other
Rs. 100) in each case. We find also from a memorandum
which has been furnished to us by the Bank* that all of the
notes of or above 100 Rs. in value ehtered in Mutty Loll Seal’s
account book, were paid into the Bank, in the course of busi-
ness, (one of those No. 28163 for Rs. 100 to the credit .of
Mutty Loll Seal’s own account current) during the year 1846
and could not, therefore have been lodged in the Police Chest.
Now Mr. McCann might possibly have said that he received
the notes from Mutty Loll Seal such as’ bhe paid them over
to Mr. Patton, and that they were exchanged by the parties
who had charge of them before they reached him. But then,
as we have seen, his account of dates and persons, as regard
the receipts corresponds so closely with that of Mutty Lol
Seal as to his delivery of the notes for payment, that it leaves
scarcely room for the supposition of an intermediate exchange
of notes, and allowing even this supposition, there can be
no assignable motive for exchanging the two notes for Rs. 250
and Rupees 100 for other notes of the same amount but different
numbers. Mr. McCann has, however not referred to any sug-
gestion of the notes having been exchanged before his receipt
of them, but has replied,t when questioned about the dis-

* Bank of Bengal note No. 514 for Co.’s Rs. 250, received from Dowlut Hurkara
on gaccount of Mr. Sherriff at Bishop's College in exchange for cash on
th® 2nd July, 1846.

Ditto Np. 28163 for Co.’s Rs. 100, Paid into the Bank to the credit of Mutty
Loll Seal’s account current on the 2nd Jualy, ¥846.

Ditto No. 10004 for Co.’'s Rs. 100. Received trom Nudear Chand Doss on
account of Obyram Doss, petty Shroff of Loll Bazar, in exchange for cash
on the 4th July, 1846.

Ditto No. 13179 for Co.’s Rs. 100. Received from Mothoor Mohun Banerjee
on account of Messrs. Haworth Hardman and Co. account current on
the 7th July, 1846, |

Ditto No. 6907 for, Co.’s Rs. 100. Received from Gocool Kishen Deb on account |
of Mr¢. R. O'Dowda in account current on the 7th July, 1846,

Ditte No. 29533 for Co.’s Rs. 100. Received from Golam Russool Dauftry on
account of Mr. Gomes at Company’s Press in exchange for cash on the
23rd August, 1846, .

Ditto No. 2308 for Co.’s Rs. 100, Received from Goburdhun Doss, Dhunsook
Doss by Hurree Churn Dhar, on account of the agency of Agra Bank on

- acconnt current on the 16th July 1846. _

Ditto No. 961 for Co.’s Rs. 100, Received from ditto on account of ditto on the
6th July, 1846.

Ditto No. 41977 for Co.’s Rs. 100. Received from Sub.Treasurer, Fort William,
forming part of & remittance from whe Collector of Nuddeah on the 27th
Augzust, 1846,

1 T . 21 .-'\:.l.-l- BT MR sk R ﬂnﬂ'
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crepancy. I may have exchanged larger notes for smaller
ones, as is often done,”” On this we have to remark that he
had previously said* in his statemeunt to us of the same day.
«¢The Bank notes were brought to me by Mr. Hughes with
a Sircar. The notes remained from that time in the Police
Chest till they were sent to Mr. Pation,” and it is the spirit of
his explanation in his letter of the 9th June, that the notes
so remained, labelled, depasited, and untouched. Apart from
this, however, it is to be said of an exchange by Mr. McCann,
as has been said of a possible exchange by Mr. Hughes, that
it cannot be believed that there should have been an exchange
of notes of the same amount. On the whole we are compelled
to say that we are quite unable to give credit to Mr. McCann’s
report of his proceedings in this matter. We cannot, of course,
say with certainty what the precise truth is about the notes,
but we do not believe that they were paid into the Police
Chest, and kept for above 3 years, as professed by him, and
we cannot, therefore, but regard his conduct and statement
in the case as showing an important dereliction of duty, and
a subsequent discreditable attempt to mislead the Government.
We must add that in our judgment, the clear probabilities
of the case are that the notes were nof at the time taken over
froppg Mutty ‘Loll Seal, since we find that one of them, as
has been mentioned, was paid into the Bank on his personal
account on the 2nd July, 1846. Every circumstance of the
transaction, too, appears to us unfavorable to Mr. McCann,
Had he been really acting directly and openly, he would have
distinctly reported the receipt of the money to Mr. Patton,
and had such a report been received, Mr. Patton would not
but have ordered the immediate transmission of the amqunt to
the only place where it could properly remain, the public trea-
gsury of his office. For Mr. Patton, as we shall see in a later
paragraph, knew nothing of the Police Chest, and held himself
to have no responsibility in regard to it. Mr. McCann’s gene-
ral defence (that is independently of the particulars that have
~ been stated as to the Bank notes) may be summed up in the
following extracts from his oral statement before us.t <1 left
the money only for the reason 1 have assigned. It was known
to every bodye that the Thannah had been sold. It is very
unlikely that I could have sold the Thannah without authority,”
but opposed to facts and considerations, such as those which
we have explained, pleas of this kind, can be of little force
for Mr. McCann’s exculpation, though they may tend to prove
that the control exercised bzr the superior officers of the de-

. ™ L - W L ] a2 o' 3
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partment over his proceedings was, and was felt by him to be
habitually lax and ill informed.

20th. It appears also that Mutty Loll Seal was permitted to
occupy two other of the Old Thannahs (those of Kubberdangah
and Burra Bazar) on a professed arrangement for the paying
10 Rupees a month as rent to Government. This arrangement
is, in the same manner, stated to have been verbal, and as to it
likewise, there are contradictions between Mr, Patton on the
one hand, and Mutty Loll Sealand Mr. McCann on the other,
the latter parties asserting that Mr. Patton orally sanctioned
the transfer of the Thannahs, and Mr. Patton saying that he
has not the slightest recollection of his ever having been spoken
to on the subject. Mr. McCann has explained that no Bill
was sent to Mutty Loll Seal for the monthly rent of 10 Rupees,
as he had a heavier claim against Government for the rent of
the Mounted Police Stables. We are aware from the records
of the Police Office that Mr. Patton had declined to apply to
Government for the rent of these stables till he received satis-
factory reports from Captain Hicks in regard to the organization
of the Mounted Police. But this which might bhave been a
valid reason for not calling on Mutty Loll Seal for the rent of
the Thannahs, only renders it the more remarkable that Mr.
Patton seems to have remained without information of  the
existence of a claim for rent at all. He might have forgotten
a verbal sanction once given for the occupancy of the Thannahs,
but he could scarcely have forgotten such a special reason given
for holding over the demand of rent from them, as that reason
was altogether founded on his own act in refusing to pass the
counter glaim of Mutty Loll Seal for rent for the Police Stables.
The leave to use the Thannahs may, or may not, have been an
act of'undue favor to Mutty Loll Seal, at the least, the cir-
cumstances connected with the suspension of claim for thelr
rent, give evidence of much want of ovder in the business of
the Police Office, though we would not attach the blame due
on that account to Mr. McCann, further than as, from what
we have first stated, there may be reason to presume that he
acted without® proper reference to superior authority in the
matter.

21st. The second of the instances in which ¥ appears to us
that Mr. McCann has been backward in his duty where the inter-
ests of Baboo Mutty Loll Seal have been concerned, regards the
unchecked prevalence of gambling in the Dhurrumtollah Bazar,
a property in which Mutty Loll Seal has a leading interest.
Mr. Hume has stated* to us on this subject. * Gambling
cases have also come before me, M which, on my speaking to

* Second day, pages 39, 40.
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Mr. McCann to put down such practices, he said that the Police
had no power within the Dhurrumtollah Bazar, which Mutty
Loll Seal claimed as his own property, and guarded by his own
Burkundauzes. He said that the Police could only seize offen-
ders occasionally, when they were themselves in force, and that
any systematic attempt would be sure to be resisted on account
of the considerable revenue derived from the gambling stands.
My impression from what :Mr. McCann told me was, that the
excuse was a mere evasion, and that an honest Police could, if
they liked, have put the nuisance down., Conversations of this
tenor must have been of about a year and a half ago, or per-
haps more.”” We subjoin the statements* made to us by three
Inspectors, as to the open permission of gambling at the time,
as far as 18 months back, or even more, when Mr. Daunt
was Deputy Superintendent of the Division in which the Dhbur-
rumfoliah Bazar is situated. ¢ Mr. Drew has been Inspector
gince the formation of the New Police, when he joined it after
retiring from the army. Mr. Ochme has been Inspector for
a year. Both state that they have seen gambling going on
openly in the Dhurrumtoilah Bazar in day-light.”

“ Mr. Drew. 1 have mentioned it to the late Mr. Daunt, the
Superintendent of the Division. He told me not to interfere
with, the Dhurrumtollah Bazar till he had spoken to Mr,
McCann. The next morning he came to the Fenwick Bazar
Section House, and told me that it was Mr. McCann’s order
that there was to be no interference with the Dhurrumtollah
Bazar gambling, as the Bazar was Baboo Mutty Loll Seal’s
private property, and he had his own Darogah and Burkun-
dauzes. This may be about two years ago, or move. Mr.
Burnes, then an Inspector at the same Section House, heard
Mr. Daunt say this.”

““ Mr. Burnes attends and confirms this statement..—Mvr.
Ochme. When 1 was ordered to go on duty in the Dhurrumtollah
Bazar, Mr. Drew told me that 1 was not to interfere with gam-
bling there, unless there was a breach of the peace. Onthe 7th
“March of this year, Mr. Farrell, Deputy Superintendent of the

Division, gave an order that gambling was not to be permitted,
on which two men were taken in custody, and fined by Mr.
Hume.”” Mr. Farrell, who succeeded Mr. Daunt in charge of
the Division, sayst for himself: ‘1t is about 15 months since
1 heard that there was such an order as that which Mr. Drew
has mentioned about not interfering with the Dhurrumtollah
Bazar, and immediately ¢‘ countermanded it.”> Mr. Daly, now
Superintendent of the House of Correction,who was Mr. Daunt’s

* Seventh day, p;igEE 190, 191,



96

predecessor in charge of the Division in question, and is a
person in whose personal integrity we are disposed to place
much confidence, has informed* us (after mentioning that he
never saw any partiality, generally shown to Mutty Loll Seal
while he was in the Division) that ““he had always a sharp
Native officer to look after the gambling, bul the man never
gave him informalion about gambling in the Bazar, though he
did about places ouiside. Mr. Daly was under the impression
that Ghuffoor Khansamah was the head of the gamblers in the
district, and was a suspicious character besides.,”” Taking this
statement with what Mr. Drew and Mr. Ochme have told us
of the open prevalence of gambling in the Bazar when Mr.
Daunt succeeded Mr. Daly in charge of the Division, we must
probably ascribe the circumstance of Mr. Daly not having
heard of the practice, while he was in charge, to other causes
than to the absence of gambling during that period. Another
partyt unconnected with the Polide, has said to us, referring
to a later period than that to which the preceding statements
relate, ““ I have frequently seen a system of gambling going on
in the Bazar ; about 4 months ago in the worning 1 went to the
Dhurrumtolizh Bazar, and saw a number of people gambling.
Having read a letter in the papers that morning, alluding to
the subject; I was induced to remark to the people that ghey
must be cautious, or the Police Serjeants would soon be at
their heels ; my remark appeared to make no impression. As
I walked on, a man came up from the party and said what have
they to fear? They are Baboo Mutty Loll Seal’s people, and he
bas the Police under him. I had previously imagined that the
gambling® was carried on clandestinely, but this changed my
nutimiiuu the point. The gambling was being carried on under
a pucka shed, which has been erected for the purpose. 1 say
this because I have seen gambling carried on before at the same
place under kutcha sheds. The shed is within the limit of
the Bazar property, and quite open. The principal person at
the place was Ghuffoor Khansamah. I have myself seen
him turning the Dice, or implements used in the gambling. 1
have seen him I believe 100 times so engaged at the gambling
shed. I never saw Policemen at that part of the Bazar,
though I have seen a Serjeant and 2 or 3 Polcemen on duty
at the Bazar.””} Other witnesses have spoken from personal
observation to the open prevalence of gambling in the Bazar.
To these statements Mr. McCann opposes a general denial of

* Tenth day, page 263.
+ Fifth day, pages 103, 4, Mr. N. Baillie'y Statement.
t+ See Statements of Mr. Chick and Mr. Andersoo. Fifth day, pages 116, 17.
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the conversations with him on the subject of gambling in the
Bazar as reported by Mr. Hume, and of all knowledge on the
subject until very lately. Mr. McCann’s statement before us
has been* ¢ I never gave any such orders to Mr. Daunt, and
never heard of gambling in the Bazar while Mr. Daunt was in
the Division. It was only recently that I have heard that there
was gambling there, or of Ghuffoor Khansamah’s position as
head of the gamblers, My instructions were to apprehend
gamblers in view, and if in houses, then to get informations
before the Magistrates from the neighbours with a view to pro-
curing a warrant.”” In the face however of so much direct
testimony to the long continued prevalence of gambling in the
Bazar, and- to Mr. McCann’s cognizance of it,T we cannot sze
how his disclaimer of all acquaintance with the existence of the
practice, or of a thing so0 notorious as Ghuffuoor Khansamah’s
connection with it, can be credited. To suppose that he was
unaware of it would be to imply that, after bis 30 years’ experi-
ence, he was very ignorant of what was constantly and publicly
passing in a principal Bazar of the Town, in regard to an in-
portant part of bhis duty, which is what we certainly do not
think of Mr. McCann. There is a further statement} by another
Police Officer, Inspector Marshall, which shows that he had an
impypession that it was not Mr. McCann’s wish that he should
interfere generally in respect to the suppression of gambling,
but this may be believed to have arisen from Mr. McCann’s
admonition§ to him in a case which he had entered the house
of a Chinaman to put down gambling without legal warrant.

92ud. The third instance in which it seems to us that
Mutty Loll Seal must be held to have exercised an undue influ-
ence over Mr. McCann’s proceedings, regards what is called
the Chumpatollah case, remarked on by Government ifi your
letter to the Chief Magistrate, No. 738 of the 20th May last,
We subjoin an extract from that letter as setting forth what,
after all the information we have been able to obtain, appears
to us to be the only just view that can be taken of Mr. Mc-
 Cann’s conduct in treating, upon his own showing, Inspector

Lancaster’s conduct in connection with that casé as censurable
and calling for his transfer from that part of the Town.

* Eleventh day, page 300. See also his written Statement, Enclosure, No. 2,
pages 1 and 16.

+ Mr. Farvell’s Statement (7th day, page 195) is on the last occasion of parties
being apprehended. Ghuffoor Khansamah came himself and paid the fine,and I
pointed him out to Mr, Hume as the head of the gamblers of the Dhurrumtollah
Bazar. Such was the notorious fact among the Police as to Ghuffoor Khansamah’s
position.

+ Seventh day, pages 205, 6.
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Paragraph 2nd. ¢ The affair appears to have originated in
Police Inspector Lancaster firing a pistol loaded with shot at a
dog, when it attacked him on a piece of waste ground while
going his rounds. The dog appears to have been a savage
animal; to have been one of several savage dogs that pre-
vented the Native Police from patrolling where they were, and to
have previously bitten another Inspector. The owner appears
to have been warned to keep the dog shut up.

3rd. His Honor fails to perceive in this account of the In-
spector’s act, cause for reprimanding him, and removing him
to another Section.”

We note in the margin all the points of our proceedings in

which this case is referred to. We think
2nd day, pages 26, 27. that it may be doubtful whether, as repre-

itto, page 35, : 5 .

5th day, pages 119,120,  Sented in Mr. McCann’s account of the
EH: ggigigz 203 to 20e- affair, the pisto]l was really fired only on
11th day, puges 300,301, & plece of waste ground, but we are satis-

fied that the matter was arranged, and
Inspector Lancaster transferred to another part of the Town,
with some reference to the interference and interest of Mutty
Loli Seal in the case. How active such interference and inter-
est were, i3 placed beyond doubt, notwithstanding the dis-
avowal of Mutty Loll Seal and the contradictions of other
parties on the subject, by the statement received by us from
Mr. Longueville Clarke, the Barrister, who appeared at first
before Mr. Patton on behalf of the native complainants against
the Police. We insert a further part of his examination.

““Did Mr. McCann in the conversation he held with you on
the mattey, express any dissatisfaction with the conduct of any
Police Officers in the matter ?

Cerfainly not. He seemed to consider that they had been all
very 1ll treated. But we find that Mr. McCann transferred the
Inspector Lancaster, asfor conduct which he thought in some
degree censurable, to another Division about the 27th or 28th
April, or 16 days after the otcurrence, while the dates on which
the cases were struck off as on failure of prosecution before
Major Birch aifd Mr. Patton, were the 28th and 30th April.

Can you give any explanation of this transfer of Lancaster
or of the near coincidence of its date with those of the drop-
ping of the two cases at the Police ?

I can give no explanation on this subject. I did not know
that the cases were dropped at the Police until long after 1 had
made up my mind to have nothing more to say to them. But
I had, as I have said, no ground to suppose that Mr. McCann

was dissatishied with any of the Pslice. Quite the contrary, I
werrrrrled A ki Al T 3" 2* Y 0 wx - . - Tl
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of Lancaster’s general character, in reply to some questions I
put to him.”

There is certainly nothing here consistent with the idea of
blaming and transferring Lancaster. When asked by us why
he had not transferred Liancaster at an earlier date if he thought
it an advisable measure to separate that officer from the Natives
of that quarter of the Town. His answer was only, “ I* waited
till the result of the trials was known, and 1 thought that
his services were required in the Colootollah Division,”” An
explanation which clearly cannot be taken as sufficient, since on
Mr, McCann’s representation of the case of Lancaster’s con-
duct viewed in connection with the very severe treatinent which
a Policeman had received, ought to have led to the Police
being supported by their superiors, instead of their head on the
occasion, the Inspector, being removed, as for a fault, on the
cases both by and against the Policemen, being dropped on
what was evidently a compromise on both sides; and if the
removal were determined on merely as a prudent measure for
the avoidance of future disputes, it would have been carried
into effect without regard to the particular result of the trials.
Taking however such a motive as possible, one can see no
reason why it should not have been stated from the first to Mr,
Clagke. The statement of the natives themselves is, though
to that we should not give great weight, ¢ that they heard
from Mr. Hughes in the Police Office that Mr. McCann had
said, that ke had dismissed Mr. Lancaster, the Inspector, and
nothing more could be done.”” To us, we must say that, the
transfer has every mark of being a part of the arrangement
by which the whole case was compromised, and it was ‘vidently
calculated to save Mutty Loll Seal’s credit with his neighbour-
hood. Upon all these contradictory representations, there are
two leading points as to which, In our judgment, there can
be no hesitation. First, that Sib Chunder Mullick would not
have cared to surrender himself at the Police Office unless he
had been by some means sure, not only of his immediate dis-
. charge, but also of the power, which was necesgarily his main
object in the whole transaction, of returning to his house,
without further risk of molestation from Mr. Robison’s warrant,
than was unavotdable in consequence of the interest which the
Bank of Bengal had in the case, and which, on the fact of
his return coming by any accident to their knowledge, might
bring on fresh applications from them, in regard to the warrant
at the Police; and next that it is quite impossible to accord
credit to Mr. McCann’s professions of his entire ignorance
of the facts of Sib Chunder’s havine come to the Police. and of
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his subsequent residence for six months in the town. The
Bank of Bengal indeed, remained* unacquainted with these
facts for that period ; but Mr. McCann’s position and means
of acquiring information on this point, were very diiferent
from those of the Bank. We do not know, and it might indeed
be regarded as in itself improbable, that Mr. McCann gave
such open proof of a violation of his duty as the conversations
reported by Major Birch and Mr. Strettell would imply. But
that he long connived at Sib Chunder Muilick’s escape from
the process of the Law, for the due enforcement of which
he was specially responsible, we cannot see any valid reason
to doubt. The most favorable supposition for Mr. McCann
is that, having become aware of the irregular proceedings in
Major Birch’s office respecting Sib Chunder Mullick’s dis-
charge, he did not in his subordinate capacity, choose to expose
them by active interference on his part, unless forced to do
so by circumstances. KEven this supposition, however, would
require us to record our opinion of a very gross breach of duty
on Mr. McCann’s part.

24th, The next instance of improper proceedings on the
part of Police Officers, falling under the second of the heads
under which we have arranged our report, regards the mis-
appropriation of various articles of property which wese in
the custody of the Police, and the receipt by a Deputy Super-
intendent of Division, Mr. Farrell (who has been allowed to
resign his appointment, upon grounds unconnected, as we
understand with our enquiries, since the close of our public
proceedings) of presents from residents of the town in a manner
obviousl¥ not consistent with his duty, if not for purposes
direcsly in contravention of it. The extracts which we give in
the margin from the record of our eighth, ninth and eleventh
days proceedings render it unnecessary that we should say

Eigiith day, pages 235 to 237.

Mr. Farreil and Mr. McCannah began a
conversation about the lending of articles
belonging to estates to members of the
Police. Mr. M2Cannah states that first,
one watch, and then another was lent to
him on his receipt by Mr. M¢Cann, and by
him passed on to Inspector King and then
to Inspector Robison for use, as they were
directed to note the time of any particular
circumstances when on their rounds. Mr.
McCannah also says that Mr. McCann also
lent a clock, which had been sent from
Tulloh and Co. as stolen property, to Mr,
Farrell for the use of the Section House,

more on the discreditable
laxity which has prevailed
in making over, or permit-
ting the abstraction of arti-.
cles of property under care
of the Police, than that Mr.
McCann’s bose memoranda

of as far back as March
and May, 1846, about the

transfer and claims of chains
and watches are no receipts
of the parties, but evidently

* See the examination of Mr. Cooke on this subject. Eighth day, pages 214,

Y E
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Mr. McCannah gives in two memoranda,
the entries in which are made only by Mr.
McCann, without receipts by the parties,
and explains, as to one of the Trichinopely
chains, that he got it to hang the watch by.
Mr. Farrell says, that he got the clock by
the desire of Mr. Shircore, who proved
himself to be the rightful owner, and suys
that he has a recoliection of Mr. McCannah
having twe gold chains down stairs and
giving him one, he supposes for the purpose
of his keeping it. He believes, but will not
be sure, that his wife has it now, or she
may have melted it, Mr, McCannah is
asked, if he bas mentioned to Mr. Law the
fact of these things being with the Police.
He says he has not.
Memo.

A silver watch and chain No. 23380 with
Mr, B. W. McCannah, 16th March, 1846,
sent to him.

(Signed) J.J. M.

Estate. Carter deceased. Effects sold 7th
March, 1846.

See Book.

2 Gold Trichinopoly chains with McCan-
nah and Farrell, and a silver open-faced
watch No. 6475, Maker, Lee, London.

Ninth day, pages 251 to 256. Inspector
Kingy |

#On the 22nd July, 1846, Mahboob, a
native officer, then a corporal, but since
discharged, brought to me at the Section
House, Bow Bazur, a box which I opened in
the presence of Mahboob and of a servant
from Mra. Wilson of Beniapooker. The
owner had lodged with Mrs. Wilson, and
ghe sent the box with her claim for 30 Ra.
for board and lodging, On opening the
box 1 found a new Quadrant and about 35
govereigns and 4 or 5 half sovereigns. After
counting the money before them, I brought
all with the two men to Mr. McCann,
and made the whole over to him. This was
done through Mr.®cCannab who was In
the office and was my Deputy Superintend-
_ ent, Mr. Farrell and others were there also
and saw it. I have heard no moras of it.
It was a general practice with Mr, McCann
in such cases to make us fasten up all
property with a tic¥®t showing all particu-
lars, name of party, date of death, where
brought from, &c¢c. But in this instance
I was only told to leave the property and
return to the Section House,”

Mr. McCannah says, that he saw Inspec-
tor King bring the box to the Pelice Office.
There was a small bag containing gsome
soverelpns and half sovereigns, which Mr.

were notes by Mr, McCann
for his own reference in
the event of any claim being
subsequently raised to these
effects, belonging to estates
of parties having no heirs
in Calcurta at the time of
death. Mr. McCannah, a
near relative of Mr. McCann
and a Deputy Superintend-
ent of Division, ofliciating
also when examined before
us as Deputy Superintend-
ent of Police, during Mr.
McCann’s absence, gave the
color of a public purpose
to his receipt, and retention
for more than 3 years, of a
watch and chain, but Mr.
Farrell who received a chain
without a watch, has, it 18
clear, been allowed to keep
it without question, also for
above 3 years, and told us
plainly that he understood
that Mr. McCannah let him
have the chain for his own
use, and added, ¢ that his
wife might have 1t» now ot
else might have melted it.”
Mr. McCannah’s statement
as to the disappearance of a
new @nadrant in a Maho-
gany case from Mr. Mec-
Cann’s room is particularly
to be noted, ip consequence
of his close connection with
Mr. McCann. Mr. Mec-
Cannah’s first statement as
to a clock taken by Mr.
Farrell was also that it was
‘““ lent for the use of the
Section House,”” but this
statement is directly con-
tradicted by Mr. McCann
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made over to Mr. McCann at once. When
Mr. McCannah took charge he found
the iron chest some sovereigns wrapped up
with Bills, which he helieved belonged to
this property of Dixon’s. Mr., McCannah
goea down and brings up a packet containing
17 Sovereigns.
4 Half Sovereigns.
6 Rupees sealed up with
a memorandum on it in his own hand, dated
27th July (which®* he knows to have been
July of the year of receipt) and adds that
be took the Bills first to Mr. Law and
then to Mr. McCann, and Mr. McCann said
that he was not sure whether he had paid
the DBills from his own money or from
. the money in the box, but that he had left
the Bills as a memo. ©Mr, Mc¢Cannah adds
that he recollects that there was a new
Quadrant, which he put upon the top of the
shelf himselt, but he does not know what be-
came of it. Mr. King says, that the Quad-
rant was a new one in a French-palished
Mahogany case,

Eleventh day, pages 288, 289,

Mr, McCsann is asked to explain about
the quadrant, the property of Dixon deli-
vered in by Inspector King, Mr, McCann
has no recellection of such an article being
delivered in to- him. Mr, McCannuh adds
that he saw the Quadrant about two months
before Mr, McCann went away, but did
not find it when he took the account of
stock, He put it on the shelf himself when
it came, and it was there with some papers
on it until two months before Mr. McCann's
departure.

Read td"Mr. McCann the memorandums
as to the watch and chains given to the
Police® officers, Mr, Mc¢Cannah and Mrp.

Farrell, Ilas he any observation to make
on the matter?
Mr. McCann. 1 have no recollection as

to the chains beinz given, but of course,
1 cannot deny my hand-writing. 1 lent the
watches for public purposes, 1 beiieve the
chains to have been attached to the watches.
Mr. Farrell ramaeﬁ:s that he got no watch
at the time.

- responsibility for the clock,

and says that he knew no-
thing about it, after the case
regarding it had been sent
up to the Magistrate, and
who, when confronted with
Mr. McCannah (who stated
sthat he recollected having
seen the clock in Mr. Mc-
Cann’s room for about 20
days after the case had been
disposed of) averred that
Mr. Farrell could have taken
it away from his, Mr. Mec-
Cann’s room, without his
knowledge. We have seen
already different instances
of serious abuse which arose
from the laxity allowed by
Mr. McCann in regard to
the appropriation of articles
of property coming under
his care in the Police Office.
It is right here to remark
that the strange mnattention
by which the whole charge
and power over all property
of every kind coming into
the Police rested personally
with Mr. McCann, appears
to have existed from a period
auterior to Mr. Patton’s
appointment to the Chief
Magistracy, though we at
the same ame think that
Mr. Patton after the receipt
of the orders already cited,
which were passed by the
Governmens 1n 1845,should

have felt himself distinctly, and specially responsible for the

proper management of the business of every
Mr. McCann conducted all transactions

executive Police.

branch of the

* Mr. McCannah states on the 3rd September, that he believes he antedated this
packet, and the Bills paid only amount to Hs.£0-7-3, and 16 Rs. said to have been paid
for the funeral expenses, The amount of the sum brought in, Mr. McCannah knows

notlung about,
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connected with the receipt of property coming into his official
custody in a manner, which if it was not intended must have
had the certain effect, of affording the greatest facilities for fraud.
He kept no lists* of articles or money received, took noaccount
of articles in store at any period, and gave no receipt for articles
brought to him. The key of the chestin which valuables were
kept remainedt exclusively with Mr. McCann. Mr. Law
when he took charge of the Office’ of Superintendent ¢ found]
no accounts in it of any kind whatever.” Mr. McCann saidg
¢ that he always understood a memorandum was kept at the
Station House which would be a check upon him, When any
petition for property was presented to him he always referred
it to the Station House for report. He did not however make
it a part of his duty to ascertain that such a memorandum was
kept at the Station House. Even however as to this degree
of check upon property, for which claimants were likely to come
forward we find from Mr. McCannah that the memoranda at
the Station Houses were only recently introduced|| under a
verbal order from Captain Hicks, that they were prepared only
by the senior Native Officers of each station and without
counter-signature by the Inspectors, and that they were regard-
ed¥ as books kept by the Native Officers for their own informa-
tion, and not examined by the Deputy Superintendents.  But
it is manifest that as respects the property of persons dying
intestate, or otherwise not likely to be reclaimed from the
Police, Mr. McCann kept himself wholly without check. It
was unavoidable that, under these circumstances there should
be a general suspicion of such property not being duly account-
ed for. Mr. Chick** says, ““ I have heard it stated generally
that property belonging to persons dying intestate, or without
representatives or relatives, coming into the possession of the
Police, has for the most part never been accounted for. This
remark applies to prostitutes and strangers, and the lower
orders of native inhabitants of all kinds. 1 believe this to be
a matter of Miversal notoriety amongst the natives in the
town.” And one witness, Mvs. Purney, the wife of an Inspector,
tells a storyt+ of having seen a quantity of gold and silver orna-
ments, belonging to deceased women of the town, melted
down by Mrs. ¥arrell, which though we cannot certainly receive

* 11th day, page 284. 4th day, page 81. 6th day, page 165,
t 4th day, pages 81, 82,

T 8th day, page 227.

§ 1lth day, page 288,

i} 11th day, page 286,

4 6th day, pages 166 and 169,

*¥* 5th day, page 138.

T 4th day, pages 216 and 247.
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it as true on her unsupported statement, yet shows the general
impression that there was much facility for making away with
this description of property. Other property of seamen and
others dying intestate in Calcutta, came also into Mr. Me-
Cann’s possession. The sum paid into Government on all
these accounts from January 1840 to July 1849, has been* -
Escheats.......... et iaae e ..., - Ra. 536l
(This word marking the proceeds of property un-
claimed in the Town.) -
Estates ........ oot iiiininiennen, Rs. 95251
(This word marking the proceeds of property of In-
testate seamen and others dying in Hospitals, &ec.)

Total, Rs. 10612

or about 1000 Rupees a year under both heads. We can of
course only speak from a very general supposition on the pomt,
“but it strikes us that the sum carried to credit on account of
Escheats or unclaimed property within the Town, at the rate
of but little more than 500 Rupees a year, is very small. We
place among the enclosurest a list of the articles found in the
Police Chest, when such a list was lately made by order of Mr.
Law, and in the three instances of articles,i the property of
deceased prostitutes there entered, the value of the arficles
must be considerable. As some means of checking the amount
of property which had come into the possession of the Police,
we had some of the books spoken of by Mr. McCannah as
having been kept by Native Officers at the Section Houses sent
for and examined. In one we find Rs. 253—8 as having been
deposited with Mr. McCann in August, 1847, as taken {rom the
hous® of a suspected party; but unless this sum was included
in an item§ of Rs. 349-8-3 paid into the Chief Muagisirate’s
Office on April 28th, 1849, under the head “ additional escheats
and cash found on gamblers and in gambling houses and loose
cash found in Iron Chest|| (which can neithew be proved nor
disproved) there is no means of knowing what became of it.
Iun enclosure *No. 169 are entries from a few other Section
books of articles, which the Police accountant certifies that he

* Tth day, page 202, and Enclosures Nos. 1 and 4.
+ Enclosure, No. 15. .
1 The property of Saddoo Raur, Imaum Raur, and Russoo Raur.

' § There was at first a mistake about this item arising from a mistranslation in
Mr. Patton’s Office. It was supposed that Rs, 300 was the sum deposited.
Whereas it was the amount of cash sfolen and Rs. 23-8 sbove, alone were deposited,
and the year of deposit was incorrectly stated as 1840 instead of 1847.

i Enclosare No. 16. .
T Qoa 113k Aavy wooog PS5 4 9237
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has not been able to trace in-any manner, and a comparative
list of property sent to the Police as belonging to deceased
persons from the (General Hospital since 1843, and of such
parts of this property as are now to be discovered in any of the
Office books. - The property of which, upon these data, the
disposal cannot be ascertained, may possibly be occasionally in
that condition from irregularities in account, or from the pecu-
lations of inferior Officess. But the principal person upon
whom the responsibility in such matters must rest is undoubt-
edly Mr. McCann. The items which have come 1n this manner
to our knowledge are not of important amount, but they point
to what has been the opening for abuses of the same kind.
We have referred also, in connection with this part of our
enquiry to the accounts of values of Bank Notes forwarded
from the Bank to the Police on account of notes supposed to
have been stolen. No well founded complaint has reached us
of improper conduct under this head, but here again we have
to notice that no register has been kept in the Office of such
values received and defained (for in very many instances, the
~values are at once allowed to be taken away, without recorded
receipt or note, by the parties who presented the notes at the
Bank,) and hence, in the absence of specific complaint, there
" is no means of check. Itis to Mr. McCann that we think that
the'allegations of direct misconduct have been most distinctly
brought home. Having noticed in previous paragraphs our
opinion in respect to his culpability in the different instances*
of doubt as to his proceedings which have come under our
cognizance, we need not here recapitulate those statements.
While our report has been under preparation, we haxe received
further communications from Mr. McCann of the 12th and 16th
instant with correspondence annexed, referring chiefly to his
conduct in the matters of the sale of the Putteldangah Thannah
to Mutty Loll Seal, and of the failure to execute the warrant
for forgery issued against Sib Chunder Mullick. But we find
nothing in th®se papers which can affect the views we have
before expressed.

* Sale of Putteldangah Thannah to Mutty Loll Seal and delay in paying in the
purchase money into the Police Treasury.

Prevalence of gmbling in the Dhurrumtollah Bazar,

Transfer of Inspector Lancaster to another Division in the Chumpatollah case.

Failure to execute the warrant of arrest upon Sib Chunder Mullick charged with
forgery.

Abstraction of property by parties in the Police.

Improper confinement of 2 natives at the Thannah in the case of Ghunta Mull.

Habitual total want of account and check in respect to property coming under
charge of the Police.
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Extract from a letfer from the Secretary to the Government of
Bengal to the Chief Magisirate of Calcuita. Dated 11th
April, 1850 No.— - o

Paragraph 7th.—The Deputy Governor thought it necessary
to remove Mr. McCann, the Deputy Superintendent of Police,
on being informed of his resuming charge after the expiry of
his leave on sick certificate. ) |

8th. In the case of the sale of the Putteldangah Thannah
to Mutty Loll Seal, effected by Mr. McCann without authority,
at least without authority regularly obtained, the fact was not
reported by Mr. McCann for about three years, during all which
time he pretended that the mouey had been lying by him for-
gotten. The Committee report on very sufficient grounds, that
they are quite unable to credit Mr. McCann’s aceountof the
affair ; that his conduct and statement show an important dere-
liction of duty, and a subsequent discreditable attempt to mis-
lead Government, and that every part of the transaction is dis-
creditable to him. - |

O9th. In letting two other Thannahs to Mutty Loll Seal,
for which the rent was never demanded, the Committee think
that there may be reason to presume that Mr. McCann acted
without superior authority. | .

10th. The Committee report that it has been established to
their satisfaction that Mr. Mc¢Cann allowed open gambling to
prevail unchecked, under the lead of one Guffeor Khansamah,
in the Durramtollah Bazar, a property in which Mutty Loll
Seal has a principal interest, and it seems impossible to ques-
tion the correctness of the conclusion they have arrived at.

11th, The Committee again report it to be their opinion that
Mr. McCann must be held to have been unduly influenced by
Mutty Loll Seal in what is called the Champatollah case: they
consider that the removal of Inspector Lancaster from one
section to another in connection with that case, for which
removal there was no good reason, has every gppearance of
having had for its object the saving of Mutty Loll Seal’s credit
with his neighbourhood. It is indeed difficult to account for -
the Inspector’s removal on any other hypothesis.

12th. The Committee report again against Mr. McCann in
connection with the Forgery case. In that case one Sib Chun-
der Mullick, against whom a warrant had been issued at the
instance of the Bank of Bengal by the late Mr. Robison in
February, 1846, appeared at the Police Office, and received in a
very irregular manner a discharge from Mujor Birch in January,
1849, He was permitted to live six months subsequently in
Calcutta, without concealment, and without the warrant being
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put in force against -him, although 1t was in full force, never
having been cancelled or recalled. The Committee .sum up
their opinion of Mr. McCann’s conduct in this case in the
following terms : * But that he (Mr. McCann) long connived
at Sib Chunder Mullick®s escape from the Law, for the.due
enforcement of which he was specially responsible, we .cannot
sée any valid reason to doubt. The most favorable supposition
for Mr. McCann is that,ghaving become aware of the irregular
proceedings in Major Birch’s Office, respecting Sib Cliunder
Mullick’s discharge, he did not in his subordinate capacity,
choose to expose them by active interference on his part, unless
forced to do so by circumstances. Kven this supposition,
however, would require us to record our opinion of a very gross
breach of duty on Mr. McCann’s part.”

13th. One of the most serious and systematic mal-practices
that have been reported, namely the misappropriation of pro-
perty coming into the custody of the Police 18 brought home
to Mr. McCann, who had uancontrolled charge of all such pro-
perty. The Committee report: *“Mr. McCann conducted all
transactions connected with the receipt of property coming into
his Official custody, in a manner, which, if it was not intended,
must have had the certain effect of affording the greatest facili-
ties, for fraud. . He kept no lists of articles or of money
received ; took no account of articles in Store at any period,
and give no receipt for articles brought to him. The key of
~ the chest in which valuables were kept remained exclusively
with Mr. McCann; Mr. Law, when he tock charge of the
Office of Superintendent, found no accounts in it of any kind
whatever.”” ¢ That there was misappropriation,” His Honor
observes, ‘¢ is certain.”

True Extract.
(Signed)  J. W. DALRYMPLE,

Under Secretary to the Government of Bengal’




